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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu, I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee at today's

          6  hearing.  The Committee has been convened today in

          7  order to consider two piece of legislation, Intro.

          8  No. 205 and Intro. No. 210.  Both of these bills are

          9  designed to make New York City safer from

         10  electrical- related hazards, such as the one that

         11  caused the tragic death of Jodie Lane on January

         12  16th of this year.

         13                 This hearing is a follow- up to an

         14  oversight hearing held by this Committee on February

         15  12th, 2004. That hearing was entitled, Sidewalk

         16  Safety: Maintenance and Repair of Utility Work

         17  Performed on New York City's Streets and Sidewalks:

         18  Are New Yorkers' Lives Unnecessarily Being Placed in

         19  Danger?

         20                 It is noteworthy that during the two

         21  months that have elapsed since the February hearing,

         22  there have been numerous instances of additional

         23  electrical- related problems, including dogs

         24  reacting to stray voltage on sidewalks, and manhole

         25  covers popping off throughout the City.
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          2                 At the February 12th hearing, this

          3  Committee heard troubling testimony concerning the

          4  specific circumstances that led to the tragic death

          5  of Jodie Lane, who was electrocuted after coming

          6  into contact with a metal plate on a City sidewalk.

          7  The Committee was further disturbed by testimony

          8  about the larger issues concerning repairs and

          9  maintenance Citywide of electrical- related

         10  infrastructure.  Key witnesses from Con Edison, the

         11  company whose electrical infrastructure created the

         12  conditions that led to Ms. Lane's death, the New

         13  York City Department of Transportation, the City

         14  agency charged with ultimate responsibility for the

         15  City's streets and sidewalks, and the New York State

         16  Public Service Commission, the agency vested with

         17  jurisdiction and oversight powers over public

         18  utility companies, specifically, those engaged in

         19  the electrical and gas business.

         20                 From the testimony on February 12th,

         21  it became apparent that neither agency vested with

         22  jurisdiction in this area, the State PSC nor the

         23  City DOT routinely conducts inspections of New York

         24  City's electrical infrastructure to ensure that it

         25  is safe, and that maintenance and repairs are done
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          2  in a quality and timely matter.  From the PSC's

          3  testimony it became evident, that the only time an

          4  inspector is dispatched is when a serious injury or

          5  fatality occurs.  And even after the testimony, the

          6  definition of what constitutes a serious injury

          7  remains unclear.

          8                 What is clear is that the Public

          9  Service Commission's inspection process is

         10  exclusively complaint driven.  City DOT, on the

         11  other hand, does not perform any quality assurance,

         12  safety inspections at all concerning utility work

         13  performed below ground.  DOT stated that its

         14  function ends after a street opening permit is

         15  granted. Assuming one is even required, more

         16  troubling yet, was Con Edison's own admission, on

         17  the record, that it does not routinely inspect its

         18  equipment that is everywhere in the City, and that

         19  Con Edison workers are merely instructed to rectify

         20  problems as they encounter them.

         21                 The February 12th testimony given by

         22  Con Edison, the primary entity in electrical

         23  transmission and delivery in New York City, and by

         24  the Public Service Commission, and the Department of

         25  Transportation, the two public agencies with
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          2  jurisdiction and oversight over such activity

          3  alarmed this Committee, even more so than we were

          4  prior to that hearing.  The need for a safety

          5  mandates and strictures in this area was made

          6  apparent and obvious, and for this reason we are

          7  considering Intros. No. 205 and 210, which were

          8  introduced in the last couple of months, and we will

          9  consider these Intros. Today.

         10                 We are joined by Council Member Diana

         11  Reyna from Brooklyn, and Council Member Helen Sears

         12  from Queens, Council Member Sarah Gonzalez from

         13  Brooklyn, Council Member Michael Nelson from

         14  Brooklyn, and Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr. From

         15  Queens, and the prime sponsor of Intro. 205, Council

         16  Margarita Lopez is across the street at a hearing of

         17  the Contracts Committee.  Another Council Member who

         18  has been pushing very hard for Intro. No. 205 is

         19  Peter Vallone, Jr., and at this point I would like

         20  to turn the floor over to Council Member Vallone for

         21  some opening comments.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         23  Chairman Liu.  I thank you because I have not had to

         24  push you all that hard because you have taken this

         25  and run with it, and having this hearing very
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          2  promptly on this very important issue.  So I thank

          3  you for your leadership in this regard. And I am

          4  proud to work with Margarita in crafting this bill.

          5  And what we learned at our last hearing was that the

          6  City does not inspect these underground substations,

          7  they rely on the state.

          8                 The State testified that they do not

          9  inspect these underground substations because they

         10  do not have the inspectors.  They rely on Con Ed.

         11  And Con Ed testified that they inspect these, at

         12  least, up until recently about once every 15 years.

         13  That is completely unacceptable.

         14                 This bill will mandate inspections by

         15  Con Ed every year.  In addition, we cannot just rely

         16  on Con Ed, as I said before, that is like a fox

         17  watching the hen house. We need to have oversight,

         18  the State must fulfill its obligation to do its own

         19  inspections to make sure that Con Ed is actually

         20  doing the work, which I have no doubt they are, when

         21  they tell me they are.  But also, the City has

         22  responsibility, as does the State, to oversee.

         23                 I do not have much hope that the

         24  State will do that, because the State has never

         25  fulfilled any of its obligations to the City.  So
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          2  the City must protect its own, if this bill needs to

          3  be amended; I am working on that to ensure that the

          4  City is mandated to inspect Con Ed's work.

          5                 We have learned recently that Con Ed

          6  came in and certified that they checked every site,

          7  and that all the stray electricity was removed, and

          8  two weeks after that another dog was shocked.  The

          9  union then alleged that the work was done in a

         10  shoddy fashion.  This is why oversight is needed by

         11  somebody other than Con Ed.

         12                 So I am proud to have worked with

         13  Margarita Lopez and John Liu, and I know that

         14  Council Member Nelson has a bill today, I am sure we

         15  will hear from.  So thank you again, and I look

         16  forward to the testimony.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         18  Member Vallone, and now we have Council Member Mike

         19  Nelson, who is the prime sponsor of Intro. No. 210

         20  with some opening comments.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         22  Chairman Liu.  Going along with the tragic incident

         23  and then some other reported after that, and we do

         24  not know how many really took place prior to all of

         25  them, many of them probably happened where people
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          2  may have been moderately shocked and so on, and

          3  nobody wants to run to an ER, so that is another

          4  story.

          5                 But right now what we are looking at

          6  is how do we stop another tragic, that such as Jodie

          7  Lane's.  So my Intro. Would contain some

          8  subdivisions, basically, to insulated work that is

          9  being done, whether it is above ground or below

         10  ground on many different types of work, connecting

         11  boxes, conduits, cables, manhole covers, gratings,

         12  poles, plates.  And if you find a way that may be

         13  grounding would be affected, especially on new work,

         14  either way where it would not put somebody's life at

         15  risk, we would like to see that happen.

         16                 Another subdivision would affect,

         17  would require that repairs be done expeditiously as

         18  possible once they are reported within a reasonable

         19  amount of time, as opposed to, well, we will get to

         20  it.

         21                 And another subdivision, basically,

         22  would require all the entities providing electrical

         23  services to the City of New York to report to the

         24  Council and the Mayor no later than 60 days after

         25  the effective date.
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          2                 So myself and Council Member Vallone,

          3  and Margarita Lopez will be working together to

          4  craft some legislation, basically, to protecting New

          5  Yorkers from walking on the streets of New York.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          8  Member Nelson.

          9                 At this point, we are delighted to

         10  have David Woloch form the Department of

         11  Transportation, the City's Department of

         12  Transportation to testify on this bill.  He will be

         13  joined by Steve Galgano, the Executive Director of

         14  Engineering at the DOT.  Following the DOT, we will

         15  hear from John Banks and Lewis Rana from Con Edison.

         16  Following Con Edison we will hear from

         17  representatives of Local 1- 2, Utility Workers Union

         18  of America.  And then following that panel, we will

         19  hear from community activists.

         20                 Deputy Commissioner, welcome.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank

         22  you, Chairman.  Good morning, Chairman Liu and

         23  members of the Transportation Committee, I am David

         24  Woloch, Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs at

         25  the New York City Department of Transportation.  And
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          2  with me here today is Steven Galgano, DOT's

          3  Executive Director Traffic Operations Engineering.

          4  Thank you for providing me with this opportunity to

          5  testify today on Intros. 205, 210.  I commend

          6  Chairman Liu and this Committee for your leadership

          7  in focusing on the safety of utility work performed

          8  on the City streets and sidewalks, and making this

          9  issue a priority in the aftermath of the January

         10  16th tragedy. Ensuring the safety of those traveling

         11  on the City streets and sidewalks is certainly a top

         12  priority for DOT, and we welcome the opportunity to

         13  be here today.

         14                 Intro. 205 would require all

         15  entities, including the City of New York to engage

         16  in the provision for electrical service in the City

         17  to establish and implement written guidelines for

         18  the annual inspection of its electrical- related

         19  equipment, and where necessary, make appropriate

         20  repairs for the equipment.

         21                 The Administration supports the

         22  intent of this bill and annual inspections as a

         23  means of ensuring the safety of the public as they

         24  navigate the City's streets and sidewalks.  Any

         25  person walking around the City should be assured of
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          2  the integrity of the electrical equipment located on

          3  and below the streets and sidewalks.

          4                 The bill is currently drafted, it is

          5  not clear as to whether or not the City would be

          6  considered an "entity engaged in the provision of

          7  electrical service", and we believe the language in

          8  the bill will have to be amended and made clear.

          9  However, regardless, the City is taking steps to

         10  ensure inspections of the infrastructure under our

         11  jurisdiction.

         12                 The ambiguity in the bill relates to

         13  the responsibility of the city's streetlights and

         14  traffic signals that is shared between DOT and Con

         15  Edison. Condition Edison's responsibility extends

         16  from the conduit in the street to the base of the

         17  light pole or traffic signal.  And DOT's

         18  responsibility includes the pole itself and the

         19  wires that run inside of it.  And for traffic

         20  signals the conduit connecting each pole at an

         21  intersection.  Each year the City pays Con Edison a

         22  facility charge of $12 million to bring safe and

         23  reliable electricity to the base of our light poles

         24  and traffic signals.

         25                 Within the City, there are
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          2  approximately 300,000 streetlights in addition to

          3  the 170,000 metal street light poles located on our

          4  streets.  There are approximately 20,000 light poles

          5  located on Parks Department property, and

          6  approximately 50,000 traffic signal poles.  All

          7  categories of which DOT is responsible for

          8  maintaining.  DOT already conducts annual

          9  inspections of its traffic signals, and we are

         10  incorporating inspections for stray voltage as part

         11  of these inspections. Inspections of streetlights

         12  for stray voltage are more difficult because the

         13  poles, while usually assessed every 10 days, are

         14  done so from vehicles.  As done this year, we will

         15  ensure inspections for stray voltage going forward.

         16  While this would likely create a new cost for the

         17  City, it is one we plan to pursue.  We are currently

         18  examining different mechanisms to conduct these

         19  inspections as efficiently and as reliably as

         20  possible.

         21                 Intro. 210 would require that all

         22  entities, including the City of New York, that

         23  provide electrical service in the City, utilize non-

         24  conductive protective materials to insulated all

         25  electrical- related infrastructure under its control

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  on, above, or below the streets and sidewalks of the

          3  City; and requires the repair of any defects or

          4  degradation found in the quality of the insulated

          5  equipment.

          6                 This bill as currently drafted, does

          7  not clarify if it is meant to include DOT's

          8  streetlights and signals.  It also is not clear, as

          9  to what would be expected of us if our poles were

         10  included.  The electrical wiring inside the casing

         11  of our street lights and traffic signal poles is

         12  already well insulated.  Again, we ask that the

         13  Council clarify the intent of the bill as it relates

         14  to the City's streetlights and traffic signals.

         15                 As the agency responsible for the

         16  safety of the City's streets and sidewalks,

         17  protecting the public as they travel around the City

         18  is a primary concern for DOT. New York City was

         19  recently cited as the number one walking city in

         20  America, a testament to our safe streets and

         21  sidewalks; and we want to continue to do all we can

         22  to improve and ensure the safety of our pedestrians.

         23  Accordingly, we applaud the Council in their efforts

         24  to address the safety of the City's electrical

         25  infrastructure.
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          2                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          3  testify before you today, and at this time we would

          4  be happy to answer any questions that you may have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Deputy

          6  Commissioner Woloch, and we applaud you as well for

          7  beginning to make these periodic inspections of the

          8  electrical infrastructure as they fall within your

          9  jurisdiction.

         10                 At the February 12th hearing that we

         11  conducted there was no mention, in fact, there was

         12  no regular process described to us that DOT takes to

         13  make these kind of inspections.  So in the recent

         14  months that have elapsed, that DOT has put together

         15  a program under which your agency would be able to

         16  make these periodic inspections?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well I

         18  think as we have described at the hearing two months

         19  ago, we had already embarked on a program for this

         20  year to make sure that all of our infrastructure was

         21  inspected.  And that work has been completed for

         22  this year.  We do not yet have a program in place to

         23  do that permanently, but it is a program that we

         24  plan on putting in place.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You are testifying
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          2  in support of Intro. 205, which would mandate that

          3  Con Edison or the providers of the electrical

          4  transmission and distribution, and the entities or

          5  the companies that perform such work be responsible

          6  for conducting inspections of their own work.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Correct,

          8  we are in support of annual inspections for the

          9  City's electrical infrastructure.  Would you be in

         10  support of a bill, or an amendment to this bill that

         11  would require the City's Department of

         12  Transportation to make periodic inspections as well.

         13    You have testified that you have made the

         14  inspections this year, and we applaud you for doing

         15  that. Although, we will have some questions about

         16  exactly what was done.  But there is still no plan

         17  on putting together a program of periodic

         18  inspections?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well

         20  there is two different items that have been talked

         21  about, and I think it is important that we draw the

         22  distinction between the two.

         23                 One is the inspection of DOT's own

         24  infrastructure, which includes the traffic signals

         25  and the streetlights.  And again, I think there will
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          2  have to be some discussion about the language in the

          3  bill, because it is not clear to us if the bill is

          4  drafted, includes that infrastructure.

          5                 And as I said, regardless of the

          6  bill, we are planning on ensuring inspections of the

          7  infrastructure under our control.  But in terms of

          8  the vast infrastructure that is not our

          9  responsibility, that is not something that we are

         10  planning on inspecting, as we had testified a few

         11  months ago.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you are

         13  planning, or you did conduct inspections of the

         14  poles under your control, such as the poles carrying

         15  the traffic signals and other, what you call,

         16  infrastructure under DOT's jurisdiction.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

         18  We have worked with Con Ed in January, February, and

         19  March to ensure that all the traffic signal poles,

         20  and street light poles that could have contact with

         21  pedestrians were inspected.  And that day, a need

         22  that we are committed to meeting every year.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me just take a

         24  minute to relieve some of the congestion in this

         25  room right now. I would like to turn the floor over
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          2  to Council Member Vallone to welcome some of our

          3  young guests here today.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You mean you

          5  want me to get rid of all the Con Ed people?  No.

          6                 Kids, welcome.  This is the fifth

          7  grade graduating class from PS 234 in Astoria,

          8  Queens with their parent coordinators Mrs. O'Brien

          9  and Mrs. Marcos.  Welcome to City Hall.  This is one

         10  of two hearing rooms that the City Council has.

         11                 And by the way, my name is Peter

         12  Vallone; I actually represent your area.  And when

         13  you get to be 18, you can vote for me or run against

         14  me, whatever you want to do.

         15                 And so this is one of the two hearing

         16  rooms, there is a bigger one out that, which you may

         17  have seen already.  They put the more important

         18  hearings in this room, though, not really.

         19                 And this is the Committee for

         20  Transportation, which is chaired by John Liu, who is

         21  also from Queens.  And we are today, hearing

         22  testimony from the Department of Transportation,

         23  which is a City agency.  The City Council is charged

         24  with overseeing City agencies, and we are going to

         25  all work together today, with Con Ed also to try to
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          2  make sure that our sidewalks are safe.  So that is

          3  what we are doing here today.

          4                 Welcome to City Hall, and thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  To the

          7  future members of the City Council, you are lucky;

          8  it does not seem like any of them can run next year.

          9                 I want to thank everybody for their

         10  indulgence.  Getting back to the matter at hand,

         11  Deputy Commissioner, you testified that you have

         12  conducted inspections in conjunction with Con Edison

         13  on the items that can come in contact with

         14  pedestrians, and you specifically mentioned

         15  streetlight poles, traffic signal poles.  But what

         16  about the metal plates, or metal casings, or

         17  manholes that are on streets and sidewalks that

         18  pedestrians can come in contact with?  What has DOT

         19  done or planned to do, you know, with respect to

         20  those pieces of metal that could potentially carry

         21  voltage and that pedestrians often do come in

         22  contact with?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         24  as we had described at the last hearing, our

         25  responsibility as it relates to the infrastructure
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          2  actually on the street, and plates that are put on

          3  streets in conjunction with street cuts is to make

          4  sure that work is done properly, in terms of the

          5  impact on the surface of the street, and mobility,

          6  making sure that when street cuts are done, that

          7  when the work is completed they get restored

          8  properly.

          9                 In terms of the electrical issues

         10  related to that infrastructure, that is not under

         11  our purview.  We do not have staff, who are even

         12  trained to deal with those issues.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, then with

         14  respect to coverings and other pieces of equipment

         15  or, well related to coverings and other pieces of

         16  equipment that are on the ground itself, apart from

         17  poles, the DOT does not intend to do anything with

         18  respect to ensuring the safety for pedestrians.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  There is

         20  a portion of that universe that is under our

         21  portfolio.

         22                 MR. GALGANO:  We have sidewalk boxes,

         23  which are associated with some of the intersection,

         24  some of the traffic equipment.  Those are tested and

         25  those will be continued to be tested.  But any
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          2  manholes or sidewalk boxes or enclosures that do not

          3  belong to DOT, we do not have any plans, at this

          4  time, to test or inspect.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yet, DOT still

          6  continues to issue permits for the work that is done

          7  below the sidewalks and streets, as we do, not just

          8  for Con Edison, but for other utilities, for cable

          9  companies, we issue every year, tens of thousands,

         10  hundreds of thousand of factors of street cut

         11  permits.  And you know, as I said before, and as we

         12  testified a few months ago, we have a number of

         13  responsibilities related to those cuts to make sure

         14  that the cuts get done properly, that mobility of

         15  pedestrians and motorists is not in impaired, and

         16  that the work get restored properly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well do you have

         18  jurisdiction to conduct those inspections, the

         19  inspections of the work directly below the manholes

         20  and below the sidewalk boxes that Mr. Galgano just

         21  mentioned?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  No, and

         23  in fact it is not clear to us that we would even

         24  have the legal authority to go into that equipment

         25  that belongs to Con Ed, underground, to do those
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          2  sorts of inspections.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But the Department

          4  of Transportation is responsible for ensuring the

          5  safety of pedestrians on our City's streets and

          6  sidewalks.  Is that correct?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIU:  We have

          8  many responsibilities that relate to protecting

          9  those who use the street and sidewalks.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Isn't that why you

         11  are charged to issuing those permits to begin with?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LIU:  Well

         13  certainly that is an important part of it.  I mean,

         14  again, I think if there was no entity in control of

         15  issuing permits to all of those who do work, on top

         16  of the streets, under the streets, next to the

         17  streets, there would be chaos on many of our streets

         18  every day.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Has the DOT been in

         20  touch with the Public Service Commission over these

         21  last two months?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We have

         23  that valor with the Public Service Commission and

         24  with Con Edison.  But again, I think our concerns

         25  over the past few months have been focused on the

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  infrastructure that I described earlier.  And as we

          3  know what happened in January had nothing to do with

          4  that infrastructure per se, but there are similar

          5  issues involved and we want to ensure the public

          6  that they would never face a risk like that

          7  involving our infrastructure.  We do not want to

          8  wait for another accident to happen.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There still remains

         10  this gap of oversight of this private company.  Is

         11  it enough to pass Intro. 205, and require that

         12  private companies involved in this work to conduct

         13  inspections on their own, without any coordination

         14  between City and/or State agencies to conduct the

         15  oversight?  Is it enough to rely on the private

         16  company to conduct its own investigations?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Well I

         18  think, I know Con Ed will be testifying after us.  I

         19  think you need to hear from Con Ed in terms of what

         20  their plans are. Again, all I can really comment on

         21  in a full manner in terms of what is required for

         22  the infrastructure that we are responsible for.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean all of the

         24  work that Con Ed does is channeled through the City

         25  government through your Department.  There is no
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          2  other Department involved; is there?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

          4  Remember, what we focus on a day- to- day basis in

          5  terms of our interaction with Con Ed, does not

          6  relate to the electrical integrity of their

          7  infrastructure, which is a vast infrastructure.  And

          8  I think, as we said, this is an important issue and

          9  we are glad that the Council is addressing it.  But

         10  that goes beyond what we have been charged with

         11  conducting oversight for what they do.

         12                 Now described a couple of months ago

         13  Con Ed's right to have conduit and have transformers

         14  and have service boxes, and to have all that

         15  equipment stems from a number of different

         16  franchises, consents, and contracts, that do fall

         17  under DOT's purview, and these are franchises,

         18  consents, and contracts that, in some cases go back

         19  for over 100 years.  And as part of those contracts,

         20  you know, they have the right to have that

         21  equipment, but there is nothing that addresses an

         22  oversight role related to the electrical integrity.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me, I am not

         24  going to keep beating a dead horse here, and my

         25  colleagues have questions as well.  I just think
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          2  that Intro. 205 as it currently stands will begin

          3  the process of really safeguarding our pedestrians

          4  from so- called stray voltage and electrical shocks.

          5    But it is not sufficient because it is not prudent

          6  to simply rely on a private company to do all of its

          7  own inspections.  At some point, government has to

          8  be involved, government that is interested only in

          9  protecting the safety of the residents of this city.

         10                 So it seems really necessary for your

         11  agency to coordinate with the Public Service

         12  Commissioner so that we can come up with a way for a

         13  government agency to conduct some kind of periodic

         14  inspection.  Right now that it is clearly lacking,

         15  and we would be happy to work with you on a bill, if

         16  you would like, making that requirement. Or just to

         17  help you or give you our input into what kinds of

         18  procedures your Department can put in place, and how

         19  you can coordinate with the Public Service

         20  Commissioner.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  My

         22  response again, we are in support of the direction

         23  that 205 appears to be going in, based on the way it

         24  is written now in terms of its annual inspections.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We have
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          2  questions from Council Member Vallone.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  Welcome, Mr. Woloch.  First of all, I

          5  have heard from sources in your agency that there

          6  are people there that believe I have been unduly

          7  harsh, particularly on your agency in the past.  So,

          8  I have a big smile on my face now, I am going to try

          9  to rectify that.

         10                 And let me try to first clear up

         11  things what I have said in the past.  What happened

         12  here is not the city's fault, and I do not want

         13  anyone to ever get the impression that I said that.

         14  This equipment is Con Ed's, the oversight

         15  responsibility is the State's, it is not the City's

         16  fault.  And we are now all working together to

         17  figure out what we can do to prevent this from

         18  happening again.  So there is no way that I am

         19  trying to lay blame on your agency.

         20                 Now to begin with from your

         21  testimony, you said that we need to clear up some

         22  ambiguities, but basically, it sounds like you are

         23  already doing the periodic inspections of what you

         24  are responsible for.  So there will be no real added

         25  costs.  So if we clean up those ambiguities, would
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          2  you be in support of 210?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  In terms

          4  of 205, --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That is what

          6  I meant, I am sorry, 205.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Right.

          8  In terms of 205, we are in support of it.  During

          9  this past few months, we have essentially lived up

         10  to what the bill is asking for in terms of our

         11  infrastructure.  And we plan on doing that going

         12  forward.  Not necessarily in the way that was done

         13  during the past few months.

         14                 We essentially, over the past few

         15  months, performed a function in terms of these

         16  inspections that we had not done previously to that

         17  degree, and that we would not necessarily equipped

         18  to do.  But we, you know, pulled resources where we

         19  had to and get it done quickly.

         20                 Going forward to establish a

         21  regularized, permanent function, there would be,

         22  there certainly would be cost, and that tissue

         23  something that we are in the process of thinking

         24  through now.  Thinking about how we would make sure

         25  that that could be done as reliably and as
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          2  efficiently as possible.  But we should not think

          3  this is something that we can just snap our fingers

          4  and do.  There will certainly be a cost.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  We are now

          6  talking about your above ground present day

          7  responsibilities.  But let's move to where the Chair

          8  was when he ended up with the underground Con Ed

          9  responsibilities that you do not inspect right now,

         10  and you testified to that today and in the past that

         11  you do not do those inspections.  Is that correct?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Yes,

         13  that is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  My concern

         15  is you said you do not have the legal authority.  I

         16  do not agree, first of all, the State has the legal

         17  authority, they are a governmental entity to go and

         18  check this work.  And the City checks construction

         19  work and Building Department work every day, and

         20  that is private companies with private materials.

         21  So I believe you do have the authority, you said you

         22  are not charged with it now, and I will be amending

         23  this bill to charge you with that responsibility of

         24  oversight of the underground Con Ed sites.

         25                 But the Chair asked the basic
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          2  question, he said, "Is it enough to allow Con Ed to

          3  do its own oversight without any inspections by the

          4  City or the State"?  And your answer was, let's wait

          5  to hear what Con Ed says, and I am sorry, that is

          6  just not what we want to hear today.  We want to

          7  hear your opinion, right now, the State is not doing

          8  inspections, they testified to that.  You are not

          9  doing inspections; Con Ed is the only group doing

         10  inspections of its own work.  Do you, as the City's

         11  representative, think that is enough?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Again,

         13  as I said earlier, I think we need to hear more

         14  about what Con Ed is planning on doing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Whatever

         16  they are planning on doing, no one is checking it.

         17  You think what they sit here and tell us is going to

         18  be fine, regardless of what they say?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         20  Certainly we would have to see what they do, but my

         21  understanding that whatever direction they are going

         22  in, and again, you will have to hear, I think you

         23  have to hear this from them, is going to be

         24  different than it was in the past.  And I think that

         25  an important underlying question of how to evaluate
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          2  what the need for oversight is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It is clear

          4  that we are not going to get an answer to that

          5  question.  But let me also clear up the fact that I

          6  work with many of these people in Con Ed, and what

          7  they say they are going to do, I trust what they are

          8  going to do.  I do not have any problems with that,

          9  but obviously in every area, including the City

         10  Council, mistakes are made, and it is somebody's

         11  responsibility to have oversight over that.

         12                 All right, I am going to give up some

         13  time now.  I have to apologize to the Chair, I am

         14  going to have to leave, I am taking the Public

         15  Safety Committee on a tour of Staten Island DA's

         16  Office.  I will not be able to stay here for the

         17  whole thing.  I mean I may not even get to hear Con

         18  Ed, so I will be checking the testimony with you at

         19  a later date.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         21  Member Vallone, and questions from Council Member

         22  Nelson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Hi there, Mr.

         24  Woloch.  How often do you meet, let's say, with PSC

         25  and Con Ed.  Is there ever a time all three meet
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          2  together, or is it, generally, just you and Con Ed,

          3  or you with PSC, is there a schedule set, or is this

          4  sort of as catch as catch can?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  We meet

          6  with Con Ed all the time.  And again, there are so

          7  many different issues that will bring Con Ed and DOT

          8  to the table.  I mean, they are, every day doing a

          9  tremendous amount of work that will have impact on

         10  the streets and sidewalks, and we are in frequent

         11  dialogue with them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Are there

         13  any, at the time, upper brass level, yourself, or

         14  the Commissioner or other Deputy Commissioner with

         15  somebody from Con Edison?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:

         17  Absolutely. Just the other day, the First Deputy

         18  Commissioner and I were meeting with Con Ed, that

         19  happens a lot.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  All right.  I

         21  was just thinking maybe it is a good idea if you had

         22  like, some quarterly meetings or something like that

         23  to go over and compare notes, CIA and the FBI - -

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  The need

         25  is actually, I would say greater than quarterly, and
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          2  we meet frequently with them, and much more

          3  frequently than quarterly and have a good working

          4  relationship with them.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  How

          6  often does the City expect to inspect, what you are

          7  responsible for, let's say lampposts, is it

          8  strictly, again, complaint driven, or do you have

          9  some sort of spot checks?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I think

         11  there is sort of three parts to the answer.  One

         12  part is what we all, what we have been doing for,

         13  certainly, the past few years.  And we would

         14  regularly inspect our traffic signal poles, and with

         15  the streetlights, we do a sort of inspection, but

         16  again, as I said in the testimony that would be from

         17  vehicles, vehicles on the street.  So you would,

         18  essentially, inspectors would see whether the lamp

         19  was working or not.  And that is something that

         20  would happen every 10 days or so.

         21                 But in terms of actual contact

         22  between DOT employees, or contractor with the lamp

         23  itself, as opposed to viewing it from a far, that

         24  would be complaint driven. So that is what has been

         25  happening.
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          2                 Now over the past few months, we

          3  again, have worked with Con Ed to ensure that all

          4  that infrastructure got inspected by a person at the

          5  pole who could actually see if there was stray

          6  voltage.  And again, we did that in conjunction with

          7  Con Ed, we relied on help from our contractors to

          8  get that done.  Going forward that is a need we want

          9  to continue to meet, and again, we do not have a

         10  mechanism in place right now to perform this

         11  function every year.  We are not necessarily going

         12  to do it in the same way that it was done during the

         13  past few months, but it is a function that we are

         14  committed to doing, which is why we are comfortable

         15  with Intro. 205.

         16                 Again, there are some language issues

         17  in the bill that we will have to work out, and it is

         18  not entirely clear to us, if it was the intent of

         19  the Council, to include all that we are actually

         20  planning on doing.  We are not a deliverer of

         21  electricity, with two exceptions.  We, for our human

         22  sake, do deliver electricity within the parks.  Con

         23  Ed brings it to the park, and then we are

         24  responsible for that distribution to the

         25  infrastructure within parks.
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          2                 We are also responsible for the

          3  distribution at intersections for traffic signals.

          4  And arguably, in that case, we also play a role in

          5  terms of distributing electricity.  In terms of the

          6  street light poles, Con Ed brings the electricity to

          7  the base of the pole.  But nevertheless, we are

          8  committed into ensuring that those poles some how or

          9  other, going forward, get inspected.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Just out of

         11  curiosity, do you have a stat for about, how many

         12  miles do you have your wiring for your materials?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  I do not

         14  have that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I know that

         16  this is all very difficult.  We are just trying to

         17  strike a balance to be physically sustainable, as

         18  well.

         19                 But thank you, thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         21  Member Nelson.  I want to thank the Department of

         22  Transportation for appearing at our hearing today.

         23  And once again, I just want to underscore the fact

         24  that although the City, neither the City nor the

         25  Department of Transportation is responsible for
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          2  delivering electricity to New Yorkers, to the

          3  residents of New York.  There still is a

          4  responsibility, at some point, a governmental

          5  responsibility for overseeing what private companies

          6  do. Even private companies that have been with the

          7  City for a very long time, such as Con Edison.

          8                 And so, we will have to continue to

          9  follow up on this issue until we are satisfied that

         10  there is an oversight framework between the

         11  Department of Transportation, or another agency

         12  within the City, and the State government through

         13  the Public Service Commission, or other State

         14  agency.  There has got to be some governmental

         15  oversight over what a private company does in the

         16  City of New York.

         17                 And with that, I want to thank you.

         18  We will be refining the bill to clarify what we

         19  think is the responsibility of the Department of

         20  Transportation and the City to remove any ambiguity,

         21  and we hope that you will work with us on that.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH:  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me call up our

         25  next panel, representatives of Con Edison.  We have
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          2  John Banks and Louis Rana.

          3                 After the representatives from Con

          4  Edison testify, we will hear from members of Local

          5  1- 2, Utility Workers Union of America.  And

          6  following them, we will hear from several community

          7  activists.

          8                 Good morning, gentlemen.

          9                 MR. BANKS:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.

         10                 MR. RANA:  Good morning, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Could you press the

         12  button?

         13                 MR. RANA:  Oh, I am sorry.  Good

         14  morning, Mr. Chairman and Committee members.  My

         15  name is Lou Rana. I am the Senior Vice President of

         16  Electric Operations for Con Edison, and I really

         17  appreciate the opportunity to address the Committee

         18  today on Intro. 205 and 210, concerning inspections

         19  and equipment related to the Electric Distribution

         20  System of Con Edison.

         21                 At the outset, let me, again, convey

         22  that I understand the concerns of this body, and we,

         23  as a company, take full responsibility for the

         24  tragic accident that took place on January 16th.

         25  While there is always some risk inherent to
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          2  maintaining a system as complex as the City's

          3  electrical grid, the men and women of Con Edison

          4  take great pride in keeping this system as safe and

          5  as reliable as humanly possible.  We have learned

          6  from this tragedy, and we know that we must continue

          7  to challenge ourselves to do a better job of

          8  improving a system that is already the most reliable

          9  in the nation.

         10                 By way of background, Con Edison

         11  delivers energy to 3.1 million electric customers,

         12  representing approximately 8.7 million people.  Our

         13  service area includes New York City and Westchester

         14  County, the company's gas, steam, and electrical

         15  distribution services are regulated by the New York

         16  State Public Service Commissioner, known sometimes

         17  as the PSC.

         18                 Most of the manholes and all the

         19  service boxes in the City are part of our low-

         20  voltage system.  The voltage in our low- voltage

         21  wires and structures are exactly the same voltage

         22  that you have in your apartments, homes, and work

         23  places.  In other words, it is a 120 volts.  In

         24  fact, let me note that this wire here, that is the

         25  voltage that we are talking about.  Con Edison's
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          2  distribution system is the largest and the most

          3  complex in the nation. Made up of 90,000 miles of

          4  underground cable, connected through over 250,000

          5  underground structures.

          6                 As we reported at this Committee's

          7  February Sidewalk Safety Hearing, immediately

          8  following the events of January 16th, Con Edison

          9  began a system- wide voltage testing program of more

         10  than 250,000 Con Edison transformer volts, manholes

         11  and service boxes.  We also tested more than 247,000

         12  streetlights within our service area.  More than a

         13  thousand Con Edison employees and qualified

         14  contractors performed field inspections and tests in

         15  an almost equal number served in the office support

         16  roles. When all phases of testing of our equipment

         17  were completed, some of which included multiple

         18  rounds of testing, stray voltage was found in 176 of

         19  Con Edison's 289,687 structures tested.  In all

         20  instances, the stray voltage condition was

         21  immediately eliminated.  Based on the high number of

         22  streetlights found with a stray voltage condition,

         23  Con Edison and the DOT, as you heard earlier, both

         24  sharing responsibility for different elements of the

         25  streetlight energization and maintenance, formed a
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          2  joint task force other address the issue.  This task

          3  force has made positive progress towards developing

          4  protocols to significantly reduce the chances of

          5  stray voltage associated with thee structures.

          6                 Since January 16, we have been

          7  working with industry groups and experts to review

          8  everything from corporate work procedures to the

          9  materials and testing devices used throughout our

         10  system.  Some of these reviews have proven fruitful

         11  and have already been introduced into the Company's

         12  procedures, such as changing field- crew protocols

         13  to include stray voltage testing every time a

         14  manhole service box or transformer vault is entered.

         15    With our crews conducting work on thousands of

         16  such structures a year, this program will help

         17  reinforce our overall inspection efforts.  Other

         18  solutions, however, are not fully developed, at

         19  least for the time being.  For instance, we have

         20  been testing composite material manhole and service

         21  box covers for many years.  However, most of these

         22  materials raise a host of ancillary security and

         23  reliability concerns that likely outweigh their

         24  current benefits.

         25                 I have a sample of a composite
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          2  polymer based manhole covers, that we could possibly

          3  discuss a little later.  I also have, in the bag,

          4  just a slice of a metal manhole cover, which is

          5  appreciably heavy, but we can discuss that, you

          6  know, after I finish this statement.

          7                 Independent of state and local action

          8  Con Edison has become the first utility in the

          9  nation to commit to conducting annual stray voltage

         10  testing of the electrical- related equipment in our

         11  system, including manholes, service boxes and

         12  transformer vaults.

         13                 Turning the legislation currently

         14  being considered by this Committee, let me begin by

         15  saying that we agree that more needs to be done; and

         16  as I mentioned earlier I believe the steps we have

         17  voluntarily begun will work to achieve many of our

         18  shared goals.  As currently drafted however, Intro.

         19  205 and 210 raise a series of practical issues for

         20  utilities and the public in general that deserves

         21  being addressed.  As a practical matter, it is

         22  important for this Committee to understand just how

         23  difficult it is to gain access to structures and the

         24  implications to communities and traffic.  If visual

         25  internal inspections are required for all 250,000
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          2  pieces of our equipment annually we estimated that

          3  it would require us alone, not including other

          4  electric entities, to close approximately 17 lane-

          5  miles of City streets a day.  In addition, it is

          6  somewhat unclear as to the distinction being made

          7  between annual equipment inspections and annual

          8  safety surveys.  It is also unclear as to the value

          9  of the annual Carbon- monoxide tests by utility

         10  workers as raised in the legislation.  Such testing

         11  would provide only snap shots in time as opposed to,

         12  for example, the use of carbon monoxide detectors

         13  that would provide a 24/7 detection presence.

         14                 Lastly, while we agree that we in the

         15  utility industry must constantly challenge ourselves

         16  to develop new and safer materials and detection

         17  methods for potential risks such as stray- voltage,

         18  Intro. 210 sets an unrealistic standard based on

         19  existing technology.  Non conductive insulation is

         20  already used for all of our wires and cables,

         21  however tests that we have been conducting over the

         22  past several years leads us to believe that current

         23  composites would not yet survive the rigors of New

         24  York City's harsh environment and that additional

         25  safety and security issues are raised by these uses.
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          2                 In conclusion, let me say we take

          3  great pride in our employees and recognize their

          4  dedication in the most challenging of circumstances.

          5    It is important to understand and remember that

          6  New York City is one of the most harsh and dynamic

          7  urban environments in the world.  As such,

          8  conditions constantly change thus crating a

          9  potential risk one- day where none previously

         10  existed.  It is amid this environment that we

         11  continue to challenge ourselves to create and

         12  maintain the safest and most reliable system humanly

         13  possible.

         14                 To that end, Con Edison has invested

         15  $2.6 billion over the past five years on its

         16  electric delivery system to enhance reliability and

         17  improve infrastructure. Over the next five years, we

         18  will be continuing these programs and investing

         19  billions, more to further upgraded our electric

         20  delivery system.  We have examined and continue to

         21  examine a number of alternative materials and

         22  practices to help reduce the potential risks posed

         23  by equipment within our system.  In May of 2003, we

         24  opened the Cable and Splice Center in the Bronx in

         25  cooperation with the Electric Power Research
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          2  Institute, they are also called EPRI, in order to

          3  find ways to improve the safety and reliability of

          4  our system, and let me add, the system of utilities

          5  across the nation.  We have been testing composite

          6  polymer based manhole covers, corrosion- resistant

          7  cables, service box insulating barriers, and a

          8  mobile detecting system to find stray voltages.

          9                 Our employees live and work in this

         10  City as well, and for the 14,000 men and women of

         11  Con Edison, safety is crucial.  I look forward to

         12  working with you and your colleagues as we all work

         13  towards making the City's electrical distribution

         14  system as safe as possible.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Rana.

         18                 We have been joined by Council Member

         19  Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan.

         20                 I want to thank you for your

         21  testimony. What is your opinion of the regulatory

         22  framework under which you operate?  What are the key

         23  agencies, both at the City and State level that you

         24  deal with the most?

         25                 MR. RANA:  Right, I have worked for
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          2  many years with representatives from the Public

          3  Service System, the PSC, and they have a staff of

          4  excellent engineers, an excellent financial staff,

          5  an excellent legal staff.  I have been impressed by

          6  how they carry out their business. They are utmost

          7  professionals.  They are demanding, and again, I

          8  think they do an excellent job.

          9                 Working with the City, I have worked

         10  with many City agencies.  What comes to mind is

         11  working, the work that we all did after 9/11 with

         12  the Police Department, the Fire Department, the

         13  Department of Transportation, DCAS, the Department

         14  of Sanitation, as we all work to recover from the

         15  incident.  I spent many, many hours with various

         16  agencies and that was really a team effort to

         17  respond to that tragedy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The interactions

         19  that you have with the State Public Service

         20  Commission, what percentage of that would be related

         21  to rate making as opposed to working on issues

         22  concerning safety?

         23                 MR. RANA:  Most of my own experience

         24  is working, has been working on safety issues with

         25  the PSC staff.  I have been working for Con Edison
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          2  coming on 35 years, and in my early days as an

          3  engineer, and then eventually as chief distribution

          4  engineer, we have worked on manhole safety.  And we

          5  report to them twice a year on events concerning

          6  manhole safety, what we are doing to enhance the

          7  system, not only in New York City, but also in

          8  Westchester County.

          9                 I have had very, very limited

         10  experience with them in dealing with specific rate

         11  making.  So most of my experience has been really

         12  with their engineering group. In fact, a meeting

         13  comes to mind, about a year ago, where we presented

         14  our outlook for infrastructure growth in New York

         15  City.  That was driven mainly by a lot of the

         16  buildings that we see the prospects of possibly the

         17  Olympics coming in 2012.  The various transportation

         18  projects, the Second Avenue Subway, the extension of

         19  the 7 Line.  So mostly really, and at that

         20  particular meeting was really kind of a longer term

         21  meeting to discuss from say a 50,000- foot level

         22  where we saw the need for rebuilding infrastructure

         23  for New York City as we look forward to a lot of

         24  additional construction in growth in New York City.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What was the
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          2  conclusion, or what was the response that Con Ed

          3  gave to the Public Service Commission in response to

          4  the PSC's request for you to justify why they should

          5  not fine you.  And I believe the deadline for that

          6  was March 19th, or there abouts around that date?

          7                 MR. RANA:  We have a response that is

          8  due to the City that is coming, not the City, but

          9  the PSC that is coming Monday, which will expand it

         10  in greater detail exactly what has been done since

         11  the tragedy on January 16th.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Was that the PSC's

         13  request for you to explain what has been done since

         14  January 16th, or was it, wasn't the inquiry by the

         15  PSC a question of why Con Edison should not be held

         16  responsible and financially penalized for what

         17  happened on January 16th?

         18                 MR. RANA:  There were two responses,

         19  the initial response and the one that is due on

         20  Monday is a more detailed response.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So what was the

         22  basic gist of the response that was due last month?

         23                 MR. RANA:  That was, I would have to

         24  refresh my memory, Mr. Chairman, and I would have to

         25  get back to answer that specific question.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well isn't that a

          3  major inquiry?  You have spent most of your time

          4  over your 35 year career at Con Edison on safety

          5  issues, and working on these safety issues with the

          6  Public Service Commission.

          7                 What happened on January 16th was a

          8  very, very significant event for Con Edison, as well

          9  as our City. And the Public Service Commission gave

         10  you a very directed inquiry and gave you 30 days to

         11  respond.  And you do not remember what your response

         12  was?

         13                 MR. RANA:  Well, in answering your

         14  question the response was from a representative of

         15  Con Edison.  From an engineering point of view, we

         16  follow standards by the National Electrical Safety

         17  Code, and we belong.  And the two, we have various

         18  meetings and discussions with utilities across the

         19  nation as far as what are the standards, maintenance

         20  standards and construction standards that we should

         21  comply with.  And we --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I believe the

         23  question from the Public Service Commission was,

         24  they directed Con Edison to show cause, do you

         25  remember that part of the inquiry?
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          2                 MR. RANA:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So what was the

          4  response?

          5                 MR. RANA:  Mr. Chairman, I am not an

          6  attorney, and it was a legal show cause order, and

          7  it was responded to by our legal department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Without

          9  consultation with the engineering department?

         10                 MR. RANA:  No, it was certainly, we

         11  certainly discussed the response.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Have you been

         13  directed by your lawyer to not say anything about

         14  that?  I mean, obviously, the lawyers have been in

         15  consultation with the engineers at Con Edison, and

         16  rightfully so.  And yet, you are not, for some

         17  reason, you are not able to say what your response

         18  was to the Public Service Commission.  There had to

         19  have been some response, and you in your

         20  distinguished career at Con Edison, as an engineer,

         21  and in dealing with and having dealt for many years

         22  with the Public Commission on safety- related

         23  matters, I am sure you know what it is, I am sure

         24  you know what the response is.  If you are not able

         25  to say what it is, then just tell us you are not
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          2  able to say what it is.

          3                 MR. RANA:  Well, Mr. Chairman, I am

          4  certainly, I was not directed not to say what the

          5  response is, and I am sure we can give you a copy of

          6  that response. We will give you a copy of that

          7  response and give the Committee a copy of the

          8  response.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But why can't you

         10  just give, I mean, you could have given us a copy of

         11  that response, but nonetheless, we still have to

         12  hold public hearings about this very important

         13  issue.  So can't you just give us the gist of what

         14  that response was?  I mean, has Con Edison showed

         15  cause as to why they should not be fined the $35

         16  million?

         17                 MR. RANA:  Let me go over the essence

         18  of what happened on January 16th, and what caused

         19  the voltage to appear on the service box at East

         20  11th Street.

         21                 It was a wire, a 120- volt wire that

         22  was improperly taped.  In other words, our

         23  procedures call for a rubber tape and a plastic tape

         24  when you insulate a wire. And in this particular

         25  case, the wire was approximately a year old; it had
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          2  been worked on in January of 2003.  In that

          3  particular point in time, the wire was only, the

          4  workman only used a plastic tape, and not the rubber

          5  and plastic tape.

          6                 Okay, over a period of time the wire,

          7  well the plastic tape degraded and came in contact

          8  with the cover.  And when we got there on January

          9  16th we measured 57 volts from the curb, there was a

         10  metal curb, and the edge of the box was

         11  approximately six inches from the metal curb.  So in

         12  essence that was the caused of the electrical

         13  energization of that service box.  Now the proper

         14  procedure was not followed, again, we call for two

         15  layers of tape, and as I said, the wire was about a

         16  year old and the work, approximately a year, a year

         17  before 2003.

         18                 So that part of it was part of the

         19  response described in detail what caused the

         20  energization of that box.  But as far as - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But we knew all of

         22  that though.

         23                 MR. RANA:  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean Con Edison

         25  has already rightfully accepted the responsibility

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  for what happened that day.  And we knew about the

          3  57 volts that you had measured at that site.  We

          4  know about the fact that the procedures were not

          5  properly followed, that there was not enough tape,

          6  or the wrong kinds of tape were used.  We knew all

          7  of that.  That does not, I mean, can't you give us a

          8  little bit of inside to as to what your response to

          9  the PSC was?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I mean you gave all

         11  that detail, which the Public Service Commission

         12  knew already. They actually knew it even before they

         13  asked you to show cause as to why you should not be

         14  fined that $35 million.

         15                 MR. BANKS:  Mr. Chairman, I think

         16  what Mr. Rana was trying to explain to you was that

         17  was what the order to show cause, a response to the

         18  order of show cause did.  It explained in great

         19  detail what was discussed in public already the

         20  circumstances that led up to it, and the fact that

         21  there was no malice and no intentional wrongdoing on

         22  behalf of the company.  That it was a mistake an

         23  employee, and because it was a mistake we should not

         24  be fined.  So that is what the response to the order

         25  to show cause did.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:   And the Public

          3  Service Commission in response to your response due

          4  March 19th was to ask you to provide more detail

          5  that is going to be due this coming Monday.

          6                 MR. BANKS:  I do not know if it was

          7  the exact time it was subsequent to that, but as one

          8  of the things they asked for us to do, was to

          9  provide additional detail that we will be providing

         10  next Monday.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the Public

         12  Service Commission has not had any - -

         13                 MR. BANKS:  To the best of my

         14  knowledge, they have not ruled on our order, our

         15  response to their order.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  Thank you.

         17  We have questions from Council Member Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         19  Welcome, some of my ex- friends from Con Edison.

         20                 MR. BANKS:  I still believe we are

         21  friends.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I would like

         23  to preference my remarks by also saying that nobody

         24  can be holier than thou in this, nobody wanted this

         25  tragedy to happen.  And given the abundance of
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          2  wiring throughout the City, I think you mentioned

          3  90,000 feet,

          4                 MR. RANA:  Miles.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Mile.

          6                 MR. RANA:  Ninety thousand miles.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Right, that

          8  is like to the moon, I believe.  It is a lot, and it

          9  is very difficult to maintain.

         10                 You brought up something about

         11  research and development, R&D, are you working

         12  towards, are they working towards getting

         13  inexpensive materials?  And I realize that does not

         14  include labor hours, and hitting all this mileage.

         15  But are we getting anywhere near as that cost factor

         16  knowing full well that you, it is very expensive for

         17  your organization, and obviously, more expensive for

         18  people in the City to totally, 100 percent

         19  adequately safeguard the population.

         20                 So one of my questions is in the

         21  arena of R&D, and perhaps a more explosive question,

         22  and it is not a loaded one at all.  Do you feel the

         23  electrical infrastructure is to the point where it

         24  is prohibitive to maintain as is too labor intensive

         25  and too expensive to totally do over the entire
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          2  infrastructure?

          3                 MR. RANA:  There are many areas of

          4  research that we are working on.  And for example,

          5  this composite cover is available today, but it is,

          6  right now, not practical for us to use in New York

          7  City because it is a variety of reasons.  But

          8  certainly, we are working on, and there is research

          9  going on, in coming up with better materials that

         10  would insulate the conductor in here to a person

         11  from the outside.

         12                 Also, there is some research going on

         13  in detecting when there is a problem.  In other

         14  words, when a wire may contact a metal object.

         15  Detection, I think, is key, because the minute

         16  something abnormal occurs, if there is a detection

         17  system signal back that we have a problem, we can,

         18  then go out and fix it.  So, I am optimistic that we

         19  will get better at this, because not only is Con

         20  Edison working on it, but our research organization

         21  for the nation is working on it, and other utilities

         22  across the nation are also working on it.

         23                 So we are optimistic that, to answer

         24  your second question, that we certainly will be able

         25  to really continue to do an excellent job in
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          2  maintaining the electrical infrastructure of New

          3  York City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I believe

          5  especially with a snapshot in time, which is

          6  frightening and it is true.  You could inspect

          7  something right now, and you could walk away,

          8  because the next second could be that, you know,

          9  when something underneath goes and it just would

         10  stay there.  So better materials, obviously, would

         11  of course, hopefully, avert the tragedy of Jodie

         12  Lane.  And even the minor shocks, if you will, and

         13  even with our dogs and other animals walking around

         14  as well.

         15                 Because I was fairly rhetorical as

         16  far as the expense goes, I sort of had a pretty good

         17  idea of what it might cost.  But have you been

         18  working on, at least, I am sure you haven't, but the

         19  least expensive way to do this keeping safety

         20  totally on the front burners?

         21                 MR. RANA:  Well it is a, I think, a

         22  question of what is practical.  You know, let me,

         23  again, point out that they, unfortunately, that wire

         24  that was involved in the tragic accident of January

         25  16th was only about a year old.  So, rebuilding
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          2  something every X amount of years, is certainly not

          3  the answer.  I do not know that there is a one

          4  silver bullet that, ahh, this will make this problem

          5  go away forever.  I certainly wish there were, but I

          6  don't think that is the, I do not see that little

          7  silver bullet.

          8                 But certainly, I think detection,

          9  when there is an abnormal issue out there.  And a

         10  lot of work has been done on detection.  So, because

         11  going like this the electricity conduct a high

         12  school physics is a sign wave. And when there is

         13  nothing abnormal, it is a very nice symmetrical sign

         14  wave.  When something abnormal occurs, the sign wave

         15  does not look nice and symmetrical.  It looks

         16  jagged; there are large peaks.  So that is a lot of

         17  work that has been done on, on coming up with there

         18  is something abnormal occurring.  And we have

         19  monitoring on 25,000, on all of our transformers,

         20  25,000 of our transformers.  By adding monitoring

         21  into those transformers, I am optimistic that that

         22  will be, that will go in a long ways in detecting if

         23  there is a problem.

         24                 Now the technology is not available

         25  today, let me point out, but we are working on that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Do you have

          3  crews going around with high tech mechanisms that

          4  would go over, at least, in that moment in time,

          5  that would detect, is that how it is being done?

          6                 MR. RANA:  Well what I have in mind,

          7  is we have 25,000 underground transformers in New

          8  York City and Westchester.  And we, if there is an

          9  abnormality at those transformers, we get a signal

         10  back at our control center that something is wrong.

         11  So it does not involve a crew, it involves sending a

         12  signal along our wires back to our control centers,

         13  and then we can dispatch somebody.

         14                 But right now, the technology is

         15  basically at a gross level.  Gross I mean, if a

         16  switch is open, when it should be closed, we will

         17  get that.  If the transformer was overloaded, we

         18  will get that.  So it is kind of at what I would

         19  call a gross level.

         20                 To pick out the problem that occurred

         21  on January 16th involves a very, very small amount

         22  of current. It involves an arch, and that is where

         23  you would actually have to get down into what is

         24  happening in less than a second.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  It is a small
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          2  amount, but it is sort of like, you are saying, the

          3  confluence of circumstance between the mild, the

          4  salt, the water, and the mild current, this is what

          5  caused?

          6                 MR. RANA:  Well basically, it

          7  involves like this wire, if this was the cover

          8  touching, and not enough, it probably was less than

          9  what would be called an amp.  In other words, a

         10  circuit breaker in your house is say, 50 amps, about

         11  the smaller size.  The current was probably about an

         12  amp or so, and it could just sit there energizing

         13  this cover.  So that is the type of thing that we

         14  are trying to pick out, this very, very small amount

         15  of current.  And the way to do that is to really

         16  look at what happened in less than a second.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I am sure we

         18  will be meeting again on this.  And I have to thank

         19  very much the Chair of this Committee, John Liu, for

         20  bringing this so much, and so many times, and so

         21  many hours to the public fore, if you will, and

         22  Mitch Schwartz too, I must say. Thank you, Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         24  Member Nelson.

         25                 Just a quick follow- up on your
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          2  question, you do have detectors at all of the 25,000

          3  underground transformers, is that correct?  And so,

          4  if there is an aberration in the electrical sign

          5  wave, as you call it, a signal gets sent back to Con

          6  Ed headquarters.

          7                 MR. RANA:  Let me correct that, Mr.

          8  Chairman, and I apologize for confusing it.  The

          9  signals that come back now are at, what I would call

         10  the gross level.  In other words, if a switch is - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Gross at the

         12  transformer level?

         13                 MR. RANA:  Yes, in other words, if a

         14  switch is open or closed, we would get that back.

         15  If the transformer is overloaded, with that, that

         16  would be 1,000 amps, it could be 1,000 amps.  The

         17  problem that we are trying to identify with stray

         18  voltage is a very, very small amount of current.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right, my point is

         20  that --

         21                 MR. RANA:  And we do not get that

         22  back now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- you have the

         24  detector at the transformer level, but you would not

         25  be able to do it at the individual circuit level,
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          2  the circuits that may come in contact with things

          3  that pedestrians have contact with.

          4                 MR. RANA:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you would not be

          6  able to put that at the lamppost, you would not be

          7  able to put that inside the manholes, you would not

          8  be able to put that kind of detector?

          9                 MR. RANA:  Well that is, you are 100

         10  percent correct.  But the current though, and the

         11  power comes from the transformer, so by putting in a

         12  filtering device, or a device that might recognize

         13  these little abnormalities. Again, there is no

         14  device that we can buy to --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But you are working

         16  on it.

         17                 MR. RANA:  But we are working on it,

         18  yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Nationally there is

         20  technology being developed.

         21                 MR. RANA:  Yes that is right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And that is for the

         23  detection of these aberrations in the electrical

         24  signal. What about things that just prevent shocks

         25  from occurring in our homes, for example, most of
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          2  our home, nowadays, are equipped with simple, easy

          3  to install technology that prevents people from

          4  being shocked.  And yet, obviously, you know about

          5  these ground fault circuit interrupters?

          6                 MR. RANA:  Ground fault interrupters,

          7  that is correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Couldn't something

          9  like that be installed at the base of all the light

         10  poles, and just inside the manhole covers,

         11  installing those on the wires that could come in

         12  contact with things that pedestrians come in contact

         13  as well?

         14                 MR. RANA:  Mr. Chairman, I wish it

         15  were that simple.  The engineering that goes behind

         16  designing and operating the power system is

         17  different than the engineering that goes into

         18  designing and operating the household circuit.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let's take a look

         20  at the inside the manhole covers, how many different

         21  live wires could possibly have their installation

         22  corroded, and therefore, come in contact with a

         23  metal plate, such as a manhole cover?  Are there

         24  hundreds of wires inside that manhole that could

         25  potentially come in contact with that metal plate,
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          2  or are they just a couple of wires?

          3                 MR. RANA:  Well, they're, in each we

          4  have quarter of a million manholes, in each,

          5  manholes and service boxes.  A typical box, I am

          6  going to average, would have I would say about 30 or

          7  so, wires, about 30 possibly, a little more, about

          8  30 in the box itself.  However, a lot of our conduit

          9  in the street is metal.  So then, we also have the

         10  possibility that our 90,000 miles of cable can

         11  contact a metal conduit.  So that is another

         12  complication.

         13                 An additional complication is the

         14  conduits that are not metal.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The metal conduits,

         16  can pedestrians come in contact with them?  Or do

         17  they lead to, or do those metal conduits that you

         18  speak of get connected to a manhole cover, or some

         19  kind of metal plate, or some kind of metallic

         20  service that pedestrians come in contact with.

         21                 I mean we are focused on the things

         22  that pedestrians come in contact with simply by

         23  walking on City streets and sidewalks.

         24                 MR. RANA:  It is possible that the

         25  metal conduit can be, can energize a cover or
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          2  something else because of salt water.  In other

          3  words, the salt water is a conductor, so if you have

          4  a metal conduit that is energized and there is

          5  enough water other things can then conduct. So it is

          6  not, so that is another complexity.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  In the instances of

          8  stray voltage that is, at this point well

          9  documented, is that stray voltage generally due to

         10  salt water, or is that due to insulation that has

         11  worn off a metal wire?

         12                 MR. RANA:  Okay, it is in, virtually

         13  in all cases, it starts with insulation from a wire.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it is the

         15  insulation, the metallic contacts that we are

         16  talking about, not necessarily salt water.  I mean

         17  it is, - -  let me let you finish.

         18                 MR. RANA:  Thank you.  What I was

         19  going to say was, it starts with a break in the

         20  insulation.  Now that by itself, for example, if we

         21  had a wire in a box with a pinhole in the

         22  insulation, if that wire were sitting in air, would

         23  not conduct electricity.  Air is a good insulator.

         24  But if that box were to fill up with salt water,

         25  then that wire would energized the cover.  That so
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          2  in many cases you needed, two things were involved,

          3  the break in the insulation plus salt water.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me turn the

          5  floor over, I am going to come back to that though.

          6                 MR. RANA:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But let me turn the

          8  floor over to Council Member Gonzalez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Good

         10  morning.  I just want to elaborate a little bit on

         11  what we spoke about one- on- one with respect to the

         12  carbon monoxide detectors. In your presentation of

         13  your testimony you spoke here, "Unclear as to the

         14  value of the annual carbon monoxide test by utility

         15  as raised in this legislation.  Such testing will

         16  provide only snapshots in time as opposed to, for

         17  example, the use of CO detectors that were provided

         18  24/7." Now in my district, for example, we have had

         19  two incidents with carbon monoxide and Con Edison in

         20  Sunset Park, just within the last couple of months.

         21  And my concern is that in my district people live in

         22  crowded apartments, you know, despite the inadequacy

         23  of the apartment, people still live there, and walk-

         24  ins, and basements.  There are a lot of children;

         25  there are a lot of seniors.

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 So I was wondering, over here in your

          3  statement, you put that, "to the end Con Edison has

          4  invested $2.6 billion over the past five years on

          5  its electric delivery system."  And you go on to

          6  talk about the programs and it will be continued to

          7  be happening within the next five years to utilize

          8  that money.  Is there any possibility, like I had

          9  asked earlier, to maybe have some kind of campaign,

         10  with other entities as well, so that we could maybe

         11  give some of the City, if not all of the people that

         12  need carbon monoxide detectors, detectors?

         13                 They are expensive, sometimes for a

         14  family putting food and rent is more important than

         15  buying this detector.  So is that something that you

         16  could possibly look at or work with, or especially

         17  someone in your position, I surely would appreciate

         18  working with you on that.

         19                 MR. BANKS:  Councilwoman, I would

         20  like to answer, we would be glad to work with you to

         21  see if there is something we can do.  And as you

         22  know, with Intro. 4 that the Council is currently

         23  looking at, which is the carbon monoxide detector,

         24  we have worked with the Committees responsible to

         25  add what we think is useful language.  And so we
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          2  will continue that dialogue to see if there is

          3  something we can do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay, I

          5  really appreciate it.  And I also want to say that,

          6  you know, the response in my district, and in Sunset

          7  Park, I went to the site myself, it was excellent on

          8  behalf, and you know, the same way we can give you

          9  the negatives, we can give you the positives.  It

         10  was a good response,  I was there, and the residents

         11  were telling us how well everyone worked together,

         12  including the Fire Department, the Police and

         13  Condition Edison.  So, and I did see your people

         14  working, so, thank you.

         15                 MR. RANA:  Thank you, Council member.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         17  Member Gonzalez.  And questions from Council Member

         18  Sears, and we have also, long since, been joined by

         19  Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, who

         20  has a question after Council Member Sears.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. My question may be redundant, and if so, I

         23  will withdraw it because I apologize for moving in

         24  and out of this meeting.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There are multiple

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  hearings going on.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  You know I do

          4  not do that, so apologize for it.

          5                 My question is that you talked about

          6  developing and making progress in the protocols that

          7  are developed.  Can you give an example of some of

          8  those protocols?

          9                 MR. RANA:  Sure.  Prior to January

         10  16th, when we entered a manhole or service box and

         11  left a manhole or service box, we never tested for

         12  voltage on the cover of that box, and we do now.  We

         13  had done many tests, always before we enter a

         14  manhole we have the test for the adequacy of oxygen,

         15  and also combustible gases to make sure that it is a

         16  safe environment for our workers, so that is done

         17  all the time.

         18                 But after we looked at what happened

         19  on January 16th, and we sort of say, how could we

         20  have prevented this in hindsight.  And certainly one

         21  possibility would be, not to say this for sure would

         22  have prevented it, but certainly as you leave, test

         23  before you enter it and as you leave, test for

         24  voltage, to see if there is any voltage at all on

         25  the cover.  There should be zero, but if there is
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          2  any voltage then we test.  So that is one change.

          3                 And of course, the other change is

          4  what we are committed to is our annual voltage,

          5  stray voltage survey for all of our structures.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So those are

          7  some pretty positive things that you are doing.

          8                 The next question is that you talked

          9  about material that you keep looking at, and that

         10  the reliability far out weighs the current benefits.

         11    So my question is, that if the current benefits

         12  are so drastically weakened, and you are looking at

         13  all the other stuff, where does that leave what you

         14  have currently in place?  Because the benefits have

         15  been so weakened by your exploring, and looking, and

         16  reviewing, and the materials that are hopefully

         17  testing and developed.  So I am a little confused

         18  that - -

         19                 MR. BANKS:  I think we should

         20  clarify.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It would be

         22  good because I am confused as to the status of there

         23  reliability versus safety, or if it is altogether.

         24                 MR. BANKS:  What we were trying to

         25  say was that in fact, the current equipment that we
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          2  use is more reliable and more safe than any other

          3  things that we are looking at.  For example, one of

          4  the things, and we are looking at many different

          5  things is this composite material manhole.  We also

          6  brought a piece of a manhole that is used currently,

          7  and you will see just in the weight difference

          8  alone, this way is approximately 80 pounds for a

          9  manhole. The manhole that we use today weighs

         10  approximately 300 pounds.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Do you really

         12  want me to hold that?

         13                 MR. BANKS:  This is just one- tenth

         14  of what a manhole in the street weighs, and this is

         15  a much lighter piece of material.  This raises all

         16  kinds of concern about security and as such.  So

         17  while we are looking at different types of composite

         18  materials and other things, we have not reached the

         19  stage yet where we are comfortable that replacing

         20  what we use would safe and enhance the reliability

         21  of the system.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  So actually

         23  the testing, and the scoring of all of this, it

         24  takes a long time; doesn't it?

         25                 MR. BANKS:  Absolutely.  In fact,
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          2  subsequent to January 16th, one of the things that

          3  the company did, was undertake reconstructed a

          4  facility up in the Bronx, in a Van Ness facility

          5  that is a mock sidewalk and manhole. So we can go

          6  and do testing and R&D to see if some of the

          7  materials that people are talking about actually

          8  work in a more realistic circumstance, not just

          9  laboratory testing, but to put it in a mock street

         10  setting and say whether or not it works.  Obviously,

         11  that took a long time to build that facility, so we

         12  are doing all kinds of things like that, to provide

         13  the best testing as possible for the company and for

         14  the people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And my final

         16  question, I remember your, the testimonies in

         17  another hearing, that you want to talk about what

         18  gets, because of inclement weather and the kind of

         19  salt that is used and how it does effect your

         20  equipment.  Have you been exploring other kinds of

         21  salt that may be used that may be noncorrosive and

         22  would absolutely diminish the damage to your

         23  equipment, because it seems to exist in other

         24  states?

         25                 MR. RANA:  Yes, we have, we have
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          2  looked at other salt substitutes and there is still

          3  some research going on.  But it is, at least, for

          4  right now it is my understanding that they still,

          5  although they are less corrosive, they still conduct

          6  electricity.  So I think that is the issue.  I know

          7  for example some areas use a different, they do not

          8  use rock salt on bridges because of its corrosive

          9  nature, they use some substitutes.  But it is my

         10  understanding that still conducts electricity.  So

         11  we, there is research going on to see is there

         12  something that does not.  As long as it melts the

         13  ice that is fine, and if it doesn't conduct

         14  electricity that would be ideal for us, but that

         15  substance, so far, has not been found.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you very

         17  much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         19  Member Sears, and questions from Council Member

         20  Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.  Let me start out, first of all, I

         23  apologize for coming late, but I have had the

         24  opportunity to read the testimony both of Con Ed and

         25  of the City, as I am sitting here and listening to
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          2  also some of the commentary.

          3                 Let me start and commend you, Mr.

          4  Chairman, for introducing the legislation that is

          5  the subject of the hearing today.  And let me say

          6  that I think it is absolutely essential that this

          7  legislation be passed.  Let me also say to Con Ed

          8  that I am extremely disappointed at the statement

          9  you issued, because in light of the fact that a

         10  person lost their life as a result of the negligence

         11  on the part of Con Ed, and I say that based on what

         12  appears to be evidence, it would seem to me you

         13  would be anxious to provide the City with an annual

         14  report of your inspections, and indeed, anxious to

         15  do the inspections.  And I would have liked the

         16  report to say Con Ed is prepared to do the annual

         17  inspection and prepared to do everything possible to

         18  safeguard the lives and health of all the members of

         19  the City.  The statement does not say that, it only

         20  takes issue with certain details.  And some of the

         21  comments you make, may, in fact, have some merit in

         22  terms of some precision of language.  I do not want

         23  to get into each thing.

         24                 What I think the statement should

         25  have said is, that we stand ready to sit down with
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          2  our attorneys and Counsel to the Committee to draft

          3  the legislation so to make sense, but it also

          4  guarantees to the City and its residence that we

          5  will have a safe system.  And quite frankly, I do

          6  not care if you have close 17 miles of streets per

          7  day in order to do these inspections.  I do not care

          8  if you have to close all the streets of the City on

          9  a day to do the inspections, if the safety of the

         10  citizens of the City are assured by doing that.

         11                 You know, I think it is time that we

         12  recognize after what we see on the news every day,

         13  that taking precautions is the appropriate thing to

         14  do, not to play lightly, especially after someone

         15  lost their lives in a senseless manner on the

         16  streets of the City of New York. So, what I would

         17  say, Mr. Chairman, on this, I think you ought to

         18  give, and it is your Committee and your legislation.

         19    You ought to give them a deadline, and I would

         20  suggest 30 days and say, let them come up with

         21  alternative language or suggestions to change this

         22  bill. But if they do not come up with it in 30 days,

         23  I would hope that we could vote on this legislation

         24  in that time.  I have no patience anymore for this

         25  kind of, sort of talking around the subject.
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          2                 It is essential that all of Con

          3  Edison facilities be inspected in such a way that

          4  nobody dies on the streets of New York anymore.

          5                 MR. BANKS:  Council member, we have

          6  already, and the reason our statement does not

          7  actually say that is because when we testified the

          8  last time, we have already committed to an annual

          9  stray voltage testing program.

         10                 So, if we did not put it in, we

         11  apologize for that, but we have testified to that

         12  already.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  It does not

         14  say that, and in your comments on the legislation

         15  you know where, the City, by the way, if you look at

         16  their statement, while they take issue with some of

         17  the language in the bill and suggest that some of it

         18  should be changed, they say, basically, that they go

         19  along with it, at least that is the way I read it.

         20                 You do not say that, and it is time

         21  for you to understand that you are going to held to

         22  account, and that this City Council wants to hold

         23  you to account, and wants you to report on those

         24  safety inspections. Otherwise, we might as well pack

         25  up and go home, if we cannot require that of people
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          2  who have a franchise from the City.

          3                 MR. BANKS:  Again, we have said it,

          4  and we will say it again, we commit to annual stray

          5  voltage testing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But that is not

          7  what the bill is about.  The bill was about - -

          8                 MR. BANKS:  That is why our comments

          9  were directed towards the bill.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.  It is part

         11  of what the bill is about.  But the bill is about

         12  more than stray voltage.  I mean, I think is Mr.

         13  Rana's testimony, you had alluded to the fact that

         14  stray voltage is stray and it is unpredictable.  Is

         15  that right or not right?

         16                 MR. RANA:  Well we did detect stray

         17  voltage on approximately 170 structures, which we

         18  corrected immediately.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And is stray

         20  voltage an aberration?  It is not something that you

         21  can predict; is it?

         22                 MR. BANKS:  Well that is correct.

         23  But we are attempting to understand how it occurs

         24  and what we can do,- -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well we know - -
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          2                 MR. BANKS:  We are not there today,

          3  we are not there today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but we know

          5  how it occurred on January 16th.

          6                 MR. BANKS:  That is correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The tape was

          8  initially inadequate and ultimately corrosion led to

          9  the exposing of the wire that then came in contact

         10  with a metal structure that a pedestrian also came

         11  in contact with.  The stray voltage, I think, you

         12  said before, and correct me if I am wrong that you,

         13  a metal structure such as a manhole, or a service

         14  box covering may not have stray voltage one minute,

         15  and the next minute there could be stray voltage.

         16  Is that correct?

         17                 MR. BANKS:  That is correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And even the stray

         19  voltage you can have different levels of stray

         20  voltage.

         21                 MR. RANA:  That is correct also.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the legislation

         23  we are looking at has to do with whether that tape

         24  was properly installed to begin with.  That is why

         25  it is so critical that we have this kind of
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          2  inspection.  As you said in your testimony, your

          3  worker made a mistake, mistakes happen. But that is

          4  why we have to have a regular inspection processes,

          5  that is why we are considering this bill today.

          6  Because mistakes are made, we are only human, we are

          7  not, no one in the City Council is asking Con Edison

          8  or any of your workers to be super human here.  We

          9  realize that mistakes are made.  But that is why we

         10  need an inspection process.

         11                 And speaking of the stray voltage

         12  that Con Edison keeps talking about publicly and in

         13  testimony, and I said at the last meeting that I

         14  still have a big problem with the verbiage of stray

         15  voltage, it is true that stray voltage is

         16  unpredictable, and from one minute to the next you

         17  can have no stray voltage to a little bit of stray

         18  voltage to a lot of stray voltages.  Is that true,

         19  or not true?

         20                 MR. RANA:  That is correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So the 57 volts

         22  that you keep talking about, that was actually

         23  measured hours, I do not know how long it was after

         24  the tragedy that took place that the 57 volts was

         25  actually measured.  Was it a couple of hours
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          2  afterwards, or maybe the next day?

          3                 MR. RANA:  No, no, it definitely was

          4  not the next day, it was at night.  I believe it was

          5  approximately 7:30.  I think it was approximately

          6  two hours after the --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it was a couple

          8  of hours afterwards.

          9                 MR. RANA:  Approximately.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But we have no idea

         11  how many volts were stray when Jodie Lane was

         12  electrocuted, it could have been a lot more than 57.

         13

         14                 I mean based on the public comments

         15  that Con Ed has put out after January 16th, you

         16  almost make it sound like 57 volts is actually not a

         17  whole lot.  It is just that the unique circumstances

         18  of what happened that day, the way she was standing

         19  over the metal structure and the sidewalk, and

         20  perhaps things were wet, that it was just really a

         21  totally crazy thing that happened, and totally

         22  unpredictable.

         23                 But the 57 volts, it may not have

         24  been, in fact in my opinion it is probably not 57

         25  volts that electrocuted Jodie Lane.  In my opinion,
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          2  it was a lot more than 57 volts, but there was no

          3  way to tell how many volts it actually was.

          4                 MR. RANA:  Well we know the maximum

          5  amount is approximately 120 volts because that is

          6  the circuit, that was the voltage of the circuit.

          7  You are correct, when we got there, we can only

          8  report what we found, and that is when our - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  The 170 instances

         10  of stray voltage that you did find in your

         11  inspections within the last few months, what was the

         12  range of the stray voltage?

         13                 MR. RANA:  They ranged from a couple

         14  of volts, up to a few cases of near 120 volts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But in those cases

         16  exceeding 120 volts?

         17                 MR. RANA:  And the reason, well --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  In no cases

         19  exceeding 120 volts?

         20                 MR. RANA:  Okay, let me answer, I

         21  believe the highest voltage that was measured was

         22  130.  I believe that there was one case of 130

         23  volts.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And how can that

         25  be, if the wires only carry 120 volts?
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          2                 MR. RANA:  Well when I say 120 volts,

          3  it is a nominal term.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Plus or minus 10

          5  volts is that what you are saying?

          6                 MR. RANA:  Yes, exactly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, in those cases

          8  could there ever be stray voltage more than 130

          9  volts?

         10                 MR. RANA:  We have not found that on

         11  our system, that is correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well simply based

         13  on the hundreds, I mean, I think the point here is

         14  that actually I do not think you can say that it

         15  cannot be more than 130 volts.  In the cases, in the

         16  170 cases where you did find stray voltage, you

         17  found up to 130 volts, even though the wires are

         18  supposed to carry 120 volts.

         19                 MR. RANA:  No the wire goes plus or

         20  minus 10 percent.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well that --

         22                 MR. RANA:  So plus or minus.  There

         23  is a range, when if, you know, if you talk about

         24  what is the voltage, the distribution voltage in the

         25  United States, well that is 120 volts.  But if you
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          2  actually put a volt meter into the receptacle, it

          3  could be 125, 126, 118, it depends.  If there is a

          4  variation that takes place.  But the stray voltages

          5  were from, that we found, were all from this 120

          6  system.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, let me wrap

          8  it up. I think that, number one, I just wanted to

          9  state for the record that the 57 volts is actually,

         10  it is inconclusive that that is actually what

         11  electrocuted Jodie Lane on January 16th.  It could

         12  have been a lot more than 57 volts, it could have

         13  been more than twice as much as the 57 volts that

         14  consistently appears in public records and public

         15  comments.

         16                 As far as the stray voltage issue, it

         17  is not enough to conduct annual inspections of stray

         18  voltage only. Because stray voltage is so

         19  unpredictable, you can conduct an inspection, and in

         20  one minute, there not be any stray voltage on a

         21  manhole cover or on a service box cover.  And then

         22  five minutes later, there could be stray voltage.

         23  So it is totally unpredictable, which is why that

         24  there needs to be a true inspection process on the

         25  work that has been done.
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          2                 And not only that to, if the

          3  detection technology is not there yet, at the level

          4  of the individual wires that could come in contact

          5  with metal surfaces that pedestrians come in contact

          6  with as well.  At least, it seems reasonable that

          7  more safeguarding technology in the form of GFCI

          8  circuit breakers that we have in all of our homes,

          9  in all of our outlets, individual outlets.  It seems

         10  reasonable that we can have more of those installed,

         11  even to the point of having one of those installed,

         12  or a few of those installed in every single one of

         13  the quarter of a million manholes and service boxes

         14  that exist.  And the cost of that is a quarter of

         15  million dollars, there are a quarter million of

         16  these places, the cost is no more than a couple of

         17  million dollars.

         18                 Is that a reasonable approach, or is

         19  that something just not even worth the cost of that?

         20                 MR. BANKS:  Well I do not know, we

         21  cannot really comment on the cost of something that

         22  does not exist.  So it would be inappropriate for

         23  us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  They do exist

         25  though, they exist in our homes.
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          2                 MR. BANKS:  But they may not be

          3  applicable for our system.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  A GFCI circuit

          5  breaker prevents people from being shocked.  It

          6  prevents this stray voltage from reaching that metal

          7  surface that a pedestrian could come in contact

          8  with.

          9                 MR. BANKS:  Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Rana

         10  said that a house, and the circuits in a house are

         11  very different than out electrical system.  And we

         12  are not saying that - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But you just talked

         14  about how, you know, 120 volts is the standard, I

         15  mean this wire is 120 volts.  They are the same

         16  wires that we have in our homes, and that the

         17  electrical infrastructure is not really all that

         18  different from what we have in our homes.

         19                 MR. BANKS:  It is different.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  It is not that more

         21  dangerous is what you are implying.

         22                 MR. BANKS:  I will defer to Mr. Rana

         23  because he is an engineer.  But it is different, the

         24  wires that run through your walls are not the same

         25  as the wires that run through our low- voltage,
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          2  secondary system.

          3                 MR. RANA:  Yes, perhaps the best way

          4  to take a shot at explaining the difference in a

          5  house or in an apartment, you have individual, let's

          6  call it radial circuits that come out that supply

          7  rooms for outlets.  And there is a circuit breaker

          8  for each one of those lines.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But there is a

         10  circuit breaker at that outlet too, that we plug our

         11  toasters into. That is the circuit breaker that I am

         12  talking about, not at the fuse box, but at the point

         13  where you plug your toaster in.

         14                 MR. RANA:  In some cases the, yes,

         15  you have a circuit breaker actually at the

         16  receptacle.  But in essence, you have a radial

         17  system.  The street system for large cities is far

         18  from a radial system.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But don't they all

         20  radiate from the transformer?

         21                 MR. RANA:  No, and let me explain,

         22  and it is called a network system, and that is why

         23  it is extremely reliable, because the reliability

         24  needs for a city, I think everybody here can

         25  appreciate, has to be different than the reliability
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          2  needs than the reliability needs, let's say for a

          3  farm area.  So in the cities there is a network

          4  system.

          5                 Well what is a network system?  The

          6  25,000 transformers that I alluded to before, well,

          7  for example, in Manhattan, Manhattan is broken down

          8  into approximately 30 networks, or 30 grids.

          9  Picture the island of Manhattan just cut up, and the

         10  other boroughs are the same.  So it is cut up into

         11  30 areas.  Each of those areas are independent, but

         12  it is like, if you will, a screen, a network with

         13  all the 120 volt wires are connected.  So we do not

         14  have devices that interrupt little pieces of it.

         15                 Streetlights, customers get tapped

         16  off the screen.  The screen is always left

         17  energized.  That is the difference in the design.

         18  It is very easy in a house to put a device.  A

         19  little abnormality, in fact, I mentioned the art

         20  detector.  There is a device now that will interrupt

         21  a circuit, if there is an arch in a house.  But that

         22  device is not available in the network.

         23                 So the concept is the radial versus

         24  this network where there is no device like a ground

         25  fault that sees something and then de- energizes the
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          2  defective piece of equipment.  It is not the same,

          3  it is not engineered the same way.  If there were,

          4  Mr. Chairman, we would put it in. But it is not

          5  available, and if it were, we would put it in.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          7  for joining us this morning.

          8                 MR. RANA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  We will

         10  now hear from a representative of Local 1- 2,

         11  Utility Workers Union of America, and following the

         12  members of Local 1- 2, we will hear from Susan

         13  Stetzer from Community Board 3, and Gunnar Hellekson

         14  from the Jodie Lane Project.

         15                 Good morning, gentlemen, actually,

         16  good afternoon, gentlemen.

         17                 MR. D'ANNA:  Good afternoon.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please proceed.

         19                 MR. D'ANNA:  Good afternoon, Chairman

         20  Liu and distinguished members of the City Council

         21  Transportation Committee.  My name is Bill D'Anna,

         22  and I am a Senior Business Agent of Local 1- 2,

         23  Utility Workers Union of America, AFL- CIO.

         24                 With me today are, on my right, is

         25  Mr. Chuck Rizzo, he is the Safety Director for Local
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          2  1- 2, and Mr. Richard Koda, who is a consultant to

          3  the local.

          4                 Local 1- 2 represents nearly 11,000

          5  rank- and file utility workers in New York City and

          6  Westchester County, of which approximately 9,000 are

          7  employed at the Consolidated Edison Company of New

          8  York.

          9                 Unfortunately, neither Local 1- 2

         10  President Many Hellen, nor Local 1- 2 Vice President

         11  Anthony Olivet, could be here today due to prior

         12  commitments.  At present, Local 1- 2 is in the

         13  preparation stages of collective bargaining with Con

         14  Edison.

         15                 We commend Chairman Liu and his

         16  Committee for conducting this follow- up public

         17  hearing on the inspection, maintenance practices of

         18  Con Edison as they relate to the safety and well

         19  being of the public.  New Yorkers are depending on

         20  you.

         21                 Whether appearing before this

         22  Committee, or a State Legislative body, or the

         23  media, Con Edison talks a good game.  The company

         24  provides a litany of statistics, how much money it

         25  spent on maintenance in the last three months; how
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          2  many manhole covers it inspected for stray voltage,

          3  and how much it plans to spend on capital

          4  improvements.  To put it bluntly, it is just more

          5  Con Ed propaganda, telling you, the media, and the

          6  public what everyone wants to hear.

          7                 As the men and women on the front

          8  lines, Local 1- 2 can tell you, unequivocally, that

          9  Condition Edison isn't doing anything different now

         10  than it did before your hearing of February 12th, or

         11  before Jodie Lane was electrocuted.

         12                 With two months having lapsed since

         13  the Committee's initial hearing, Local 1- 2 believes

         14  you must come away from today's fact- finding

         15  mission with clear answers to two very significant

         16  questions:

         17                 The first question, is the public

         18  safer since February 12th hearing?

         19                 And the second question, is Con

         20  Edison doing more to ensure public safety and

         21  reliable service by inspecting, repairing,

         22  maintaining and upgrading its aging transmission and

         23  distribution system?

         24                 Allow me to shed some light on both

         25  of these questions so this Committee can arrive at
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          2  the appropriate and accurate answers.

          3                 Since your February 12th hearing,

          4  there have been manhole fires, explosions, and other

          5  mishaps in the Con Edison's system throughout the

          6  five boroughs. Officials of the New York City Fire

          7  Department have stated in press reports that the

          8  number of manhole fires in 2004 is on pace to break

          9  last year's record of 4,600- plus.  And the 4,600

         10  manhole fires in 2003 were more than double that

         11  number in 2002.  There is a pattern here of things

         12  getting worse.  In fact, 915 incidents occurred in

         13  January alone, according to the New York Fire

         14  Department.

         15                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

         16  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

         17  service?

         18                 This past Tuesday, April 13, more

         19  than 100 residents in the Sunset Park section of

         20  Brooklyn were forced out of their homes because of

         21  electrical fire in two Con Edison manholes along

         22  43rd Street, near 8th Avenue, led to dangerously

         23  elevated levels of carbon monoxide.  In fact, if not

         24  for the smoke billowing form the street, which

         25  prompted an alert resident to summon the Fire
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          2  Department, who knows how many people would have

          3  been overcome by carbon monoxide poisoning, or

          4  perhaps even death.  Con Edison explained the

          5  incident as it always does, a damaged underground

          6  electrical line, something beyond its control,

          7  mother Nature dumping all the rain and crating havoc

          8  on the system.

          9                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

         10  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

         11  service?

         12                 On March 5th, two manholes in a

         13  crosswalk at 161st Street and Walton Avenue in the

         14  Bronx, exploded, causing injuries to a pedestrian

         15  who was hit with debris. A few steps closer, and he

         16  may have been killed.

         17                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

         18  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

         19  service?

         20                 On March 9th, a construction worker

         21  watched in horror as his pet dogs were shocked into

         22  a frenzy when they stepped onto an electrified

         23  section of sidewalk in the East Village, just two

         24  blocks from where Jodie Lane was fatally

         25  electrocuted by an electrically charged grate cover.
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          2                 Con Edison blamed the wiring problem

          3  in the defective service box that supplies

          4  electricity to the grocery caused 120 volts to

          5  charge the sidewalk.  If you have any doubt about

          6  Con Edison's indifference toward public safety, or

          7  Con Edison's lack of commitment toward inspecting

          8  and maintaining its equipment other ensure safety,

          9  just listen to what a Con Ed spokesman said in

         10  newspaper reports after the two dogs were zapped.

         11  The Con Ed spokesman, talking about stray voltage,

         12  said, "It's unlikely someone could be seriously

         13  hurt.." Tell that to Jodie Lane's family.  You

         14  cannot make this stuff up.  What an insult to the

         15  public.

         16                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

         17  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

         18  service?

         19                 Last month, several news agencies

         20  reported that over 600 underground transformers in

         21  Brooklyn, Queens and the Bronx are ticking time

         22  bombs waiting to explode because these transformers

         23  do not have magnetic gauges that show the oil level.

         24    Many of these transformers are in the basements of

         25  residential buildings, hospitals, schools, train
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          2  yards, and busy commercial areas.  The oil must be

          3  at a certain level because it serves as an insulator

          4  to the cables inside the transformer.  If the cables

          5  touch, they spark and cause an explosion.  Union

          6  workers are constantly reporting these defective

          7  transformers to management, but Con Edison says,

          8  there is no money in the budget for maintenance and

          9  repair.  The Company would rather wait for the

         10  explosion or a fire, when they have no choice but to

         11  replace the defective equipment.

         12                 Con Edison claims it does not know

         13  how many of these defective transformers lurk in

         14  Manhattan, where there is a total of approximately

         15  9,000 underground transformers.  How many of these

         16  are ticking time bombs?

         17                 On March 15th, a manhole explosion on

         18  Johnson Avenue and West 236th Street in the

         19  Riverdale section of the Bronx, blew out a bakery

         20  window and severely damaged a car that was parked

         21  over the manhole cover.

         22                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

         23  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

         24  service?

         25                 On March 18th, a female pedestrian
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          2  suffered serious burns after being zapped with stray

          3  voltage in Lower Manhattan, and sometime between

          4  these days, a firefighter was injured in a manhole

          5  fire in the East Village.

          6                 Is the public safer?  Is Con Edison

          7  doing more to ensure public safety and reliable

          8  service?  I can spend an entire week citing 100 more

          9  incidents, but I think we all know the grim answers

         10  to these two questions.  A common thread runs

         11  throughout these incidents.  The fact that Con

         12  Edison never once admits that the fires, short

         13  circuits, explosions, stray voltages could be

         14  avoided if the company bothered to inspect and

         15  maintain, and repair and upgrade all of its

         16  underground and overhead equipment on a regular

         17  basis.

         18                 The reason electrical wires catch

         19  fire is not because of the rain water.  The reason

         20  manhole covers and grates become electrically

         21  charged, is not because of the salt that the City

         22  uses to melt the ice.  A wiring problem in a

         23  defective service box does not happen by itself.

         24  Wiring is faulty and the service box is defective,

         25  electric cable burns, transformers explode, because
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          2  Con Edison does not inspect and maintain its

          3  equipment.  The equipment is failing, that is when

          4  the salt and the weather conditions come into play.

          5  Properly insulated cable is not effected by weather

          6  conditions.  Properly functioning transformers do

          7  not explode that well.  But Con Edison never sees

          8  these accidents coming, because they do not perform

          9  maintenance and inspection.  When insulation around

         10  electrical cable is cracked and deteriorated, when

         11  the oil level and transformers cannot be gauged,

         12  when Con Edison fails miserably inspecting and

         13  maintaining and repairing, and upgrading this and

         14  other aging equipment, that is the reason manholes

         15  are exploding and catching fire at record pace.

         16  That is why animals are being zapped with

         17  regularity.

         18                 Ironically, while Rome is burning,

         19  Con Edison is about to request the electric rate

         20  increases at the New York State Public Service

         21  Commission.  New York has already paid a high-

         22  selected rates in the country.  Con Edison wants

         23  them to pay even more for lousy service and unsafe

         24  conditions.

         25                 From the litany of incidents I have
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          2  outlined today, it is obvious that Con Edison has

          3  not learned a thing from the death of Jodie Lane.

          4  Under the glare of public scrutiny, Con Edison went

          5  through the motion of making it appeared that it had

          6  stepped up inspection and maintenance.  And that, it

          7  was, on track when new safety, inspection practices

          8  and procedures.  Once the public spotlight dimmed,

          9  Con Edison even stopped its lip service. That is

         10  why, strong local legislation is desperately needed.

         11    Local 1- 2 is urging this Committee and the entire

         12  City Council to pass a local law that would mandate

         13  Con Ed and all utility companies to perform

         14  regularly scheduled inspections, maintenance,

         15  repair, and upgrade of all equipment.  This is the

         16  only way to guarantee public safety and reliable

         17  safety.  Or else, Con Ed will bear a free ride to

         18  continue to laying blame on the range, no salt,

         19  defective wiring, acts of God, and whatever other

         20  excused it can devise.

         21                 We also urge the City Council to

         22  throw its support behind State Legislation, which is

         23  pending in the State that would mandate Con Edison

         24  and other utilities to inspect, maintain, and

         25  upgrade their equipment.  The Assembly passed this
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          2  legislation two weeks ago.  Anything short of local

          3  and state legislation, and Con Edison will continue

          4  to get away with murder.

          5                 I ask you today, ladies and

          6  gentlemen, is the public safer?  Is Con Edison doing

          7  more to ensure public safety and reliable service?

          8                 There is the closest thing to a

          9  silver bullet, it is called inspection, maintenance,

         10  and repair on a regular basis.  That is what your

         11  legislation would do, and that is why New Yorkers

         12  need it passed.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         15  testimony, Mr. D'Anna.  You mentioned a March 19th

         16  incident where a pedestrian was zapped.  Do you have

         17  any more details about that?

         18                 MR. D'ANNA:  Mr. Koda might have

         19  some.

         20                 MR. KODA:  We are checking, your

         21  honor.  We can get back to you on that, I do not

         22  have anything with me at this present time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, if you could

         24  give us more detail about who was zapped and what

         25  were the circumstances there, because I do not
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          2  remember, because if somebody was seriously burned

          3  after being zapped by stray voltage, I think we

          4  would have heard about it, but I do not recall

          5  anything, and it could just be me.  So I would

          6  appreciate it if you could give me the detail on

          7  that, but thank you for your support of this bill.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.  I had no idea, it was 4,600 plus per

         10  year manholes going on fire?

         11                 MR. D'ANNA:  Last year there was

         12  4,600 plus, this year it is on track for more.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And the

         14  reasons being, some of it you have outlined in here,

         15  is there any predominant reason why this occurs?

         16                 MR. D'ANNA:  Lack of maintenance,

         17  lack of repair.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And that is

         19  what you are pushing towards?

         20                 MR. D'ANNA:  That is right.

         21                 MR. KODA:  Ah, 210.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Have you

         23  thoroughly looked into Intro. 210, and 205 for that

         24  manner?  And if you haven't done it thoroughly, if

         25  you can get back to my office, please, and/or the
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          2  Chair and Mitchell, with that. And to see how much

          3  you would agree with it, and maybe how much you

          4  would not agree with.

          5                 MR. D'ANNA:  Most definitely, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  An

          7  approximation, if you have access to that,

          8  approximate cost to the utility, and it is hard to

          9  come by.

         10                 MR. D'ANNA:  That is kind of hard for

         11  us to do, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, I know

         13  they would have that I am pretty sure.  Because this

         14  is all altogether, but 205 and 210, we may come up

         15  with 2- 0- 7 and a half, whatever.  But whatever it

         16  is, it is under Chairman Liu's leadership.

         17                 MR. D'ANNA:  We will - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Something

         19  that will protect the public.

         20                 MR. D'ANNA:  We will definitely do

         21  the best we could with that part.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. KODA:  We strongly support the

         24  bills 205 and 210.  There may be one or two minor

         25  sections of it, which we have questions about.  But
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          2  we will definitely work with the Committee to form

          3  appropriate legislation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I appreciate

          5  that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          7  Member Nelson, and thank you, gentlemen for joining

          8  us today.

          9                 MR. D'ANNA:  Can we just - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         11                 MR. D'ANNA:  Mr. Rizzo, the Safety

         12  Director would like to just clarify something.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure.

         14                 MR. RIZZO:  Con Edison is sending

         15  their highest alarm people to give us a Smoke and

         16  Mirror Act.

         17                 You asked a question, Mr. Liu, I have

         18  the utmost respect for this Council, and I think Con

         19  Edison is disrespecting the Council, and everybody

         20  in here.

         21                 The Jodie Lane, you asked about the

         22  voltage check.  Con Edison failed to mention that

         23  when Jodie Lane was electrocuted that hole was

         24  filled with water.  When they took their voltage

         25  check, that hole was cleaned out, they took the
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          2  water out of that hole.

          3                 And Con Ed also failed to make a

          4  statement, their inspections, they are not

          5  inspecting anything.  They come in here with a Smoke

          6  and Mirror Act, they are sending people out with a

          7  pen that do not even know what a manhole, they are

          8  checking sewer covers, they are checking any covers

          9  that, if it does not light, that is their

         10  inspection.

         11                 And inspection is, the cover has to

         12  be pulled.  Somebody has to have the knowledge to

         13  look at and see if there is a potential hazard

         14  coming.  That is not being done.  They are sending

         15  people out there that cannot change a light bulb.

         16  They are hiring contractors, they are saying they

         17  are qualified people, and they are not qualified.

         18  And our exhibit the last time proved, the guy was

         19  checking a sewer cover.

         20                 They also stated that in the Jodie

         21  Lane incident that the tape was no good.  Local 1- 2

         22  resents the fact that they are blaming a member,

         23  that employee put the proper equipment that Con Ed

         24  issued on that piece of cable, and Con Ed has

         25  refused to let the union view this cable.  I had to
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          2  hear the clearance, Mr. Many Hellen; the President

          3  had request clearance because they would not let me

          4  review this cable, this evidence that they so-

          5  called have.

          6                 Then, Many Hellen had to go to the

          7  Executive Vice- President to get me clearance, they

          8  had to have clearance to look at this.  I am the

          9  safety director for 9,000 people.  I do not have 400

         10  people working under me, it is just me.  I made an

         11  appointment to go up there when we finally got

         12  clearance to see this equipment, and I went up there

         13  in good faith to see this equipment, and there was

         14  nobody there, they did not know what I was talking

         15  about.

         16                 They are going around making

         17  statements that they are inspecting manholes, they

         18  are not inspecting anything.  You fill your bathtub

         19  when you go home with water tonight, drove 25 pounds

         20  of salt in there, and stick an electric meter in

         21  there, and let me know what you come up with.  You

         22  are going to come up with zero.  Right?

         23                 The statement they made about when

         24  you asked them why was the voltage 130, there is

         25  fluctuation of voltage.  When voltage gets high that
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          2  is an indication that there is something wrong with

          3  the neutrals.  Mr. Rana did not mention that.  That

          4  voltage should not be higher than 125 tops.  It goes

          5  any higher, and with the maintenance, the guy would

          6  put a media on there and see your voltage is high,

          7  that means he has something wrong with the neutrals

          8  and that would point them to where you should check.

          9                 Also, all these inspections is part

         10  of the plan.  And these goals they keep talking

         11  about, anything metal around electricity should be

         12  grounded.  That was brought up at the last hearing

         13  of February.  And I brought it up myself with them.

         14  You could bring all the composite manhole covers and

         15  everything, it is not going to do anything.  Because

         16  you have to bring in something that will not conduct

         17  electricity.

         18                 If you ground the casting, then that

         19  will eliminate people getting electrocuted.  You

         20  have to put a driven ground into the casting with a

         21  number 8 wire, and I am not an electrician, but I

         22  was a troubleshooter for 28 years, and attach it to

         23  the system neutral.  That is the only fail- safe

         24  that would keep that cover, or that truck from

         25  becoming energized.
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          2                 You mentioned ground fault breakers,

          3  at this time, it would not be feasible to put it on

          4  the Con Ed system, but it can be used on the

          5  lampposts.  The ground fault interrupt circuit can

          6  be placed on the base of a lamppost so that if there

          7  is something that happens that would kick out and

          8  deaden that lamppost.  And the lamppost should also

          9  be grounded, which they are supposed to be grounded.

         10    And that is not Con Ed's problem with the

         11  lamppost.

         12                 The City should make, these lampposts

         13  should have to be grounded.  They have got

         14  fiberglass lampposts, which they pick up voltage on,

         15  and they do not know why yet.  I am a very

         16  passionate person, and I do not want to see any more

         17  people hurt, because of smoking mirrors.  And even

         18  though we have contract negotiations going on, this

         19  has been an ongoing thing with us for years.  It is

         20  not the first person that has been killed over

         21  something like this. It is just the first person

         22  that made page one of all the papers.  I personally

         23  was there when somebody was killed in a similar

         24  situation.

         25                 You asked for the voltage reading,
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          2  nobody said anything about amperage reading.  If you

          3  have a wire coming from a structure, feeding a

          4  building for service, and that building does not

          5  have any thing plugged in, there is no TV on, there

          6  is no clock plugged in, no refrigerator, and you

          7  take an amperage reading, you are going to get zero.

          8                 Soon as you start plugging something

          9  in, the numbers come up.  Nothing has been mentioned

         10  about amperage.  Amperage is basically the one that

         11  kills. Nobody measured amperage, nobody told you the

         12  hole was filled with water, right?  They keep using

         13  salt as an excuse.  Salt is no excuse, go fill your

         14  bathtub with water.

         15                 When you have a tub of water, there

         16  is no voltage, but if you drop a hairdryer or a

         17  radio, you can get electrocuted.  It is not the

         18  water.  Water is a conductor of electricity.  The

         19  salt just compounds the defectiveness in the

         20  insulation of the cables already.  Mr. Rana said a

         21  pinhole, a pinhole.  The cable Con Ed uses, it does

         22  not wake up in the morning and say, you know what,

         23  it is a good day, I am going to blow up today and

         24  kill three people, it does not do that.  It takes a

         25  long period of time for that cable to deteriorate to
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          2  a point where it will blow up.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. RIZZO:  Thank you very much.  I

          5  am sorry to take up your time, Mr. Liu.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is all right,

          7  thank you very much gentlemen.

          8                 I would like to call up Gunnar

          9  Hellekson. Thank you for your patience in staying

         10  with us today. Please proceed, Mr. Hellekson.

         11                 MR. HELLEKSON:  Thank you.  I am

         12  Gunnar Hellekson, I am here on behalf of the Jodie

         13  Lane Project. I want to thank Speaker, Council

         14  Member Liu, and the members of the Transportation

         15  Committee for their attention in this manner.  The

         16  problems with our electrical system are obvious to

         17  everyone, and the Jodie Lane Project is please with

         18  the prompt and thorough attention of the Council and

         19  the Committee.

         20                 You may recall that Con Edison swore

         21  to take full responsibility for Jodie Lane's

         22  electrocution death. Since the Committee's hearing

         23  in February we have seen no evidence of this,

         24  instead, the company's craven report to the Public

         25  Service Commission proved that Con Edison's
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          2  responsibility would stop at their checkbook, they

          3  have no intention of paying any fines associated

          4  with the incident, and instead threw up their hands,

          5  feigned disbelief, and suggested that nobody could

          6  be held responsible for her death.  We disagree.

          7                 Since Jodie Lane died, the company's

          8  safety record has been miserable.  The Committee may

          9  recall from the February hearings that in 2003,

         10  there were 4,600 manhole incidents, a 50 percent

         11  increase from 2002.  We are disappointed to find

         12  that another 4,600 incidents are expected for 2004.

         13  Just weeks after Con Edison's very public inspection

         14  program, manhole explosions closed a college in the

         15  Bronx, set fire to a building in the East Village

         16  and threatened 44 families with carbon monoxide

         17  poisoning.  In a chilling echo of Jodie Lane's

         18  death, two dogs were electrocuted on 1st Avenue,

         19  just blocks from where she died.  These problems

         20  continue, and Con Edison's insufficient response

         21  puts New York City at risk.

         22                 The Public Utility Law Project

         23  released a report on February 25th that shows why

         24  Con Edison has not resolved these problems: They

         25  refuse to spend the money. Using Con Edison's own
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          2  data, PULP believes that Con Edison has been

          3  systematically under- spending its maintenance

          4  budget since 2000, by an average of about 20 percent

          5  per year.  Worse, the budget itself had been reduced

          6  over that same period.  This is outrageous.

          7                 We know that maintenance of the

          8  electrical system is not just a line item in a

          9  company budget, but a serious public safety issue.

         10  In this context, the transparency and accountability

         11  required by Introduction 205 and Introduction 210

         12  are a welcome relief.  Companies are made

         13  responsible for their own maintenance and repair,

         14  even if that work is subcontracted.  Supervisors

         15  must explicitly improve inspection and maintenance

         16  work.  Most important, however, is the requirement

         17  that inspections and repairs be made public.  The

         18  data from these provisions will be invaluable for

         19  ensuring compliance and monitoring the health of our

         20  electrical system.

         21                 This is an excellent start, and there

         22  are more opportunities to improve the oversight of

         23  our electrical infrastructure:

         24                 In addition to carbon monoxide

         25  testing, the mandated inspections should include at
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          2  minimum: Frayed wires, inadequate insulation, and

          3  old wiring.  This seems facile, but there is no

          4  reason to leave this to chance.

          5                 Surely, a maximum age can be placed

          6  on the City's electrical cables, after which they

          7  must be replaced.  We firmly believe that this kind

          8  of overhaul is practical if staged properly, and

          9  would drastically improve the safety of the system.

         10                 In addition to manhole covers and

         11  service boxes, we remain concerned about the

         12  unauthorized use of electricity from street lamps in

         13  the City.  Although we know of no formal study or

         14  statistics on the issue, anecdotal evidence suggests

         15  that third parties are prying open the access

         16  panels, poaching the power inside, and leaving the

         17  panels open and un- insulated.  A walk from Houston

         18  to 7th Street just two months ago found 12 missing

         19  access panels along Avenue B.  Actually, walking

         20  over here, I found eight more on my way to the

         21  Council Chambers today. I have also seen Con

         22  Edison's work crews tap into the street lamps to

         23  perform their repairs across the street. This

         24  practice should be strictly forbidden, and we urge

         25  the Committee to address this dangerous scene.
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          2                 Over the last few months, we have

          3  learned that inspecting subsurface infrastructure is

          4  a messy business:  The service boxes and manholes

          5  are filled with mud and water.  Con Edison tells us

          6  that these conditions contribute to manhole fires

          7  and other hazards.  Five or six years ago, these

          8  underground structures would have been drained and

          9  cleaned as part of the system's regular maintenance.

         10    Unfortunately, new technology has allowed workers

         11  to detect faults from the street without going

         12  underground.  This means that the mud and water are

         13  no longer cleared, and the public no longer benefits

         14  from over 2,300 accidental, but essential house

         15  cleanings each year. New laws should ensure that

         16  this kind of comments since maintenance continues,

         17  even though new technology makes it avoidable.

         18                 Also, require that relevant entities

         19  produce their periodic summary report no later than

         20  30 days from the September 30th inspection

         21  deadlines.  We feel the deadline is quite

         22  reasonable, and will ensure that any problems are

         23  addressed before the winter season.

         24                 Also altering the bills specifically

         25  require that companies publish this information on
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          2  the World Wide Web, the benefits to the public are

          3  obvious and should be incorporated to the a minimum

          4  standard for compliance.

          5                 We hope that you will consider these

          6  recommendations.  We feel that they reflect common

          7  sense and prudence, and in fact, we are shocked to

          8  find that many of them were not already put in

          9  place.

         10                 Con Edison has complained today about

         11  the burdens of these new reforms, which is complete

         12  nonsense. If Con Edison were to adhere to its

         13  maintenance budget, we feel confident that the

         14  reforms are well within its means. And in any case,

         15  it is a false choice.  It is not a question of

         16  choosing between a bureaucracy and the efficiencies

         17  of self- regulation.  As has been learned this

         18  February, self- regulation has been the order of the

         19  day, and it has failed.  There is no choice the City

         20  must act, and Con Ed has to understand that

         21  protecting the public is not a burden, but a duty, a

         22  grave responsibility that they have to take

         23  seriously.

         24                 In closing, a word of caution.  We

         25  learned in the Committee's February hearings that no
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          2  city or state agency was adequately equipped or

          3  inclined to ensure compliance with the existing

          4  laws.  Because of this, we are concerned that these

          5  two pieces of legislation cannot guarantee the

          6  public's safety on their own.  They must be

          7  supported by a robust system of oversight.  WE

          8  strongly urge the Council to do everything it can to

          9  ensure that these laws are strictly enforced.  Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well thank you very

         12  much, Mr. Hellekson for your thoughtful comments and

         13  for participating in today's hearing.

         14                 There be no other testimony, this

         15  hearing is now adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:15 p.m.)

         17                 (The following testimony was read

         18  into the record).

         19

         20  Testimony of:

         21  Susan Stetzer

         22  Community Board 3, Manhattan

         23

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  testify on Intros. 205 and 210 which would protect
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          2  New York City residents and visitors from the

          3  hazards of stray electricity.  Community Board 3

          4  Manhattan has voted on two resolutions regarding

          5  stray electricity, which are attached.  These

          6  resolutions call on Con Edison to develop and

          7  present a safety plan.  CB 3 has also joined the

          8  Jodie Lane Project Coalition to be able to work with

          9  the community to support new city and state

         10  legislation, to require accountability from Con

         11  Edison, and to work in coalition for public safety

         12  on our streets, sidewalks, and parks.

         13                 We would like to ask for

         14  consideration of some provisions in the new

         15  legislation:

         16                 1.  Regarding carbon monoxide

         17  testing: Consider requiring carbon monoxide

         18  detectors in the same manner as is now required with

         19  smoke detector alarms.

         20                 2.  Inspections as provided by Con

         21  Edison after the Jodie Lane's death do not provide

         22  protection. Facilities are tested for voltage from

         23  the outside. Corroded wires about to break and other

         24  hazards that could cause danger five minutes after

         25  testing cannot be detected by this method.
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          2  Condition Ed is also inspecting infrastructure when

          3  doing other work, but there is no planned internal

          4  inspections.  Once- a- year inspections are not

          5  enough.

          6                 3.  While snow melt materials are not

          7  the cause of infrastructure problems, they do

          8  contribute. Research into available less corrosive,

          9  snow melt products should be part of a proposed

         10  safety plan.

         11                 4.  In the previous City Council

         12  hearing, the Utility Workers Union testified that a

         13  2001 DOT study found over 5,000 dangerous temporary

         14  shunts in NYC.  The NYC Parks Department was also

         15  aware of stray electrical hazards.  But City

         16  agencies did not report these hazards to the Public

         17  Service Commissioner because they do not have any

         18  jurisdiction with that agency.  Consider whether

         19  City agencies should be required to both report

         20  hazards to the PSC and make these reports publicly

         21  available.

         22                 5.  Con Edison promotes a telephone

         23  number to call to report potential non- emergency

         24  stray electricity hazards.  This number has been

         25  given to me several times, but I cannot remember it.
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          2    I am sure this is true for other members of the

          3  public.  The Community Board has been recommending

          4  that people call 3- 1- 1 to report non- emergency

          5  electrical hazards.  But, we have since found that

          6  3- 1- 1 does not monitor these calls in the same way

          7  as calls dealt with by City agencies.  Non-

          8  emergency calls are transferred to Con Edison.  WE

          9  think that the volume of calls can be captured to

         10  some degree by identifying the service that was

         11  selected to prompt the transfer, such as "Outdoor

         12  Electric System Complaint."  But there is follow- up

         13  to see if problems are resolved, and there are no

         14  details kept to be able to capture the number of

         15  severity of problems.  Please consider requiring 3-

         16  1- 1 to take details of reported hazards, require

         17  Con Ed to publish reports of follow- up to these

         18  problems, and make this information available to the

         19  public, and report it to the PSC.  Fire Department

         20  responses to fire caused by electrical problem

         21  should also be monitored and reported.  The 3- 1- 1

         22  should be used as a tool to help us monitor the

         23  problem of stray electricity.

         24                 Intro. 205 requires accountability

         25  and CB3 supports this requirement.  I would just
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          2  like to give an example of the problems we have had

          3  in trying to obtain information from Condition

          4  Edison, the Public Service Commissioner, and DOH.

          5                 In July 2002, there was a transformer

          6  explosion at the 14th Street Con Edison plant.  We

          7  were told by Con Edison that they could not report

          8  to the CB on the cause of the accident for security

          9  reasons.  This can be a very handy excused for not

         10  admitting fault.  At the last City Council hearing

         11  on stray electricity the Public Service Commissioner

         12  testified that information regarding this explosion

         13  was publicly available.  Immediately after this

         14  testimony I asked the PSC counsel, Kevin Lang, to

         15  make the information available to CB 3.  He said he

         16  would get back to me, and I never heard from the

         17  PSC, from NYC DOH, and we were unable to get the

         18  results.  Our congresswoman was unable to get the

         19  results.  This refusal to give information promotes

         20  distrust by the public and does not encourage

         21  accountability from Con Edison or the PSC.

         22                 CB 3 supports training for first

         23  responders. This is necessary for the protection of

         24  emergency responders as well as necessary to save

         25  lives of people who have been injured.  It became
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          2  apparent after Jodie Lane's death that not only did

          3  police not have training other respond to an

          4  electrocution, they were unaware of the stray

          5  electricity hazards and the necessity to be alert

          6  and trained to respond and to have proper equipment.

          7                 CB 3 supports City Council

          8  legislation that would require safety standards,

          9  monitoring, reporting, and accountability by Con

         10  Edison and city agencies.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 16th day of April 2004.
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         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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